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DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

KAGAWARAN NG KAPALIGIRAN AT LIKAS YAMAN

BAGONG PILIPINAS
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THE OIC, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
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MANAGEMENT LETTER OF THE FORESTLAND
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

This pertains to the Consolidated Management Letter on the audit of the Forestland
Management Project for the period January 1 to December 31, 2023.
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like to :l'equest your office the status of actions taken regarding the '

observations and recommendations of COA on the Financial Audit and Compliance audit with
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements particularly on paragraph 16-154 in the attached
Management Letter. Please submit the status both current and prior years’ on or before June
28, 2024 using the attached Agency Action Plan and Status of Implementation form for review
and subsequent endorsement to the Resident COA.

Attached is a copy of the Consolidated Management Letter for your information and

reference.
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3.

Consolidatéed Manageinent Létter on thie
Audit of the Forestland Management Project — Lodn No. PH-P248
‘of the Department of Environment and Natural Resoirces
For the period-January 1 to December 31,2023

-

1. INTRODUCTION

Pursuait to Section 2, Article 1X-D of the Eanstitution-of the Philippines, Section 43
of -the Goveiiment Auditing. Code of thé Philippinés’ and the Loan Agreement
betweén the Republic of the Philippines. and the Japan Initérnational Coopération
Agency (JICA). dated Mareh 30, 2012, we have audiied the.accounts, transactions
and operations of the Forestlatid Management.Project {FMP) Loan No. PH-248 of
the Depaitnient of Environtment and Natura] Resources (DENR).for the period ended
December 31, 2023. The audit was conducted i accordance with the International
Siandards-of Supreime Audit Institutions: (JSSAIs). Those staridards fequire. thiat we
plan and perform the-audit to obtain a reasonable basis for our conclusions.

The-audit-was conductéd by the audit team led by Ms.. Lorelie M. Placido, State
Auditor 1V-to (a) verify the level of assurance:that-may be placed-on ‘management’s
assertions- o 1he financiél statements; (b) évaluate:the extent of compliance with
Jaws, rules and regulations as well as propriety and validity- of transactioris; (c)
recominend agency improvement opportunities; and (d) determine the exient .of
implenientation of prior years® audit recommendations.

The Project’s Statement-of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance,
‘Statement of Cashi Flows, Statemient of Changes in Net Assets/Equity and Staterrent




of Comparison of Budget and. Actual Amounts for Calendar’ Year (CY) 2023

-compared with that of pmcedmg year ate shown in the attached audited financial
statements (Annexés B-G).

The deficiencies.observed in the course of the audit weic earlier comitmunicated
through Audit - Observation, Memoranda {AOM) -and’ discussed in- various Exit
Conferencés conductéd on various dates by the audit teams with the ‘concerned
officials-and. employees and-their cominents were: incorporated in this letter; where
appropnate The significant -audit ebservations and récommeiidations shall be
mcorporated in the Consolidated Annual Audit Report of the DENR for-CY 2023.

Background Information

Project.Descfiption

5.

The FMP"i5.4 fén-year DENR - TCA: ‘project-wliich -aims ‘to strengthen forestland
management in {hree critical river basins through the implementation of collaborative
and comprehenswe Communiiy-Based Forest Management (CBFM) strategies.
Although the CBFM approach was adopted afier the 1980s; degradation of forestland
and watershed continued.and resulted in frequenicy in eccurrence of natjonal disaster -

-and wateér shortage.

Building on the experience of the past programs, the FVIP assists the Govethmient to
adoptan .approach, geared towards people livinginand around the forést areas, which
directly addresses'thé basic cause of forest degradation, namely, poverty and security.
of land tenure: Altétnative incoie sources have to be provided to meet the immediate
needs ‘of rural people. For this, the ‘project will use.tlie Commiunity: Based Forest
Management Agreement (CBF] MA) and Protected Area- -Community Based Resource
Management Agreément,(PACBRMA) tenyrial instruments.

. The Projeci is being implemented in- three priority river basin. sites, ‘flie Magat-

Cagayan River Basin, Pampanga River. Basin; and the.Jalaur River Watershed. Tt is
expected 10 integrite conservation .and developmenl-onented activities with full
‘participation and capscitation of local -communities. Tliese include 149. People’s.
Organizations (POs) within the ‘identified :24. sub-watershed areas as weli-as the
DENR and othér stakeholders.

Project 'Obje,cﬁ'v_es

8.

Thé ob_;ectlves of thie Preject are:(a) to rehabilitate degraded forestlands in three
¢ritical river basin (Uppeir Magat and Cagayan, Upper Pampanga, and Jalaur); (b)-to
irnprove forest conservation and socio-economic coiiditions:of-affected communities;
(c) to contribute o disaster risk mitigation éffoits in vulnerable dreas; and (d) to

strengthen -forestland ‘management ilitough commumly-based 1nanhagement

strategles (i) -empowering people’s organizations;. (ii) issuance of Land Tenure




Jnstruments; (iii) eriteiprise development for food secunty and income; and (iv)
developmem ‘conservation, protectxon and sustainable usé of forestland resources..

‘Project Components

9.  The Projeet camprises.thie folowing components:

(,ategory 1: Comprehensive Site Development, (CSD).
1.1 Survey, Mapping and Planhing (SMPy

1.2 Community Organizing (CO).

1.3 Site. Development {SD)

1.4 Agroforestry Support Facilities (ASF)
1.5 Policy Initiatives for Watershed Management (Pl)

1.6 Monitofing and Evaluation (M&P)
1.7 Project Managerment (PM)

Category 2: Consultancy Services (CBFMA/PACBRMA) and other appropriate

tenure instiuments

Project Funds:and Implementation

10. Theiotal Project investment cost of, l‘MP is.estimated atP5,870. 64 million: Total cost
to bé borne by the Government of the Phlhppmes (GOP) is P1,162 26 ‘million wiule
tota] costto be covered by the loan from llCA is P4,708.38- m:lllon

11. The Loan Agreement No. PH-P248. was signed on March30,.2012; with 2 peuod of

ten (10) yearseffective: July 3,.2012 to July 3, 2022.

12. As of December 31, 2023, the Project is on the 12" year and final year of
nnplememauon given the two additional 1-yeat éxtensions given by JICA diring
2022 and 2023, Itis expected 0 be.completed in July 2024.

Financial Highlights

13. The Project’s financial position, financial pelformauce and sources -and- application
of funds for CY 2023 compared with the previous year are shown below:

Paiticulnrs | 2023 | 2022

Financial Positiol . _
Assets 3,091,414;857.02 | P 3;667.222,} 80.64
Liabilities 325,449,090.69. 467,733,919.27
Net Assets/Equity. 2,765,965,766.33 | P 3,1'99,438,2'7.0.'37
Financial Perforinance

Revenue -l P =
Current Operating Expénses 229,972,549.30 | 194,334,957.23
Surplus/(Deficit) from Cuivent Operations (229,972,549.30) (194,334,957.23)
Net Financial Assistance/Subsidy 283,626,034.03; 815,823,173.64




N

41

Other Non-operating Income: 1,288,773.24- 1,463.014.07

Suirplus/(Deficit) for.the Periad ¥ 54,942,257.97 622,951,230.48
Particulars 2023 2022

-Sources-and Application of Funds :

Adjusied Allotment '1-§5,880.888.38 535,224,533:42

Obligations Tncurred 71,215,474.81 422,520,629.23

| Unobligated Allotmént P 84,665,413.57. 112,703,904,19

Physical Accomplishimerits

i4. As reported, the majoraccomplishments of the FMP:for CY 2023 are as.follows:

Ointputs Overall Cumulative %
e Target Acc. Acc,
." Watershed  :management 24 WMPs ~ 24 100
plais. (WMPs) WMPs
finalized/packaged and
updated
. Partnér - Peoples’ 149 POs 149 POs 100
Organization (PO). fonned,
‘organized, and-capacitated. _
. Land Tenure: Tnstruments 149 LTI§. 102 LTIs. 68
(LTIs) issued to fartnér POs
. Plantations established - Site 71,300 ha 71,300 ha 100
Development (SD) ‘
. Viable 149 149 100
enterprisesflivelihoods
established by the pariner
POs (Enterprise
Development)
. Agroforestry Suppori 102 [*7] 91
Facilities (ASF) constructed Subprojects Subprojects
and maintained in -all sab-
watershed areas, -
~Farin to miarkeét road
~Pathway
-Hanging bridge’ 93.35km 88.36 km
-Reinforced ~ ‘toncrete . ‘
‘bridge 49:70km 33.05 km
-Irrigation pipéline system 15 units < 15 wiits
‘11 units "~ 11 units
153 km " 123.87%un
. Muylti-sectoral  Watershed 3 2'WMC and 100
‘Management Bodies, WMCs/PAMB. 1 PAMB,
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" Overall Cumulative %
Outputs ‘Targét Ace. Acc:
including cost-sharirig s
mechamsm ‘establishied
(Policy Initiative) ,
8. Site devélopment (SD) 71,300 ha 71,300 ha 100
plantations-ground-validaied
9. Project Management 34 Project 34 PMOs ’ 100
Structures and  Systems Mariagerment
orgamzed/estabhshed and | ‘Offices (PMOs)
operational

15.

Thisreporl i includes observations from the Audit Teains of DENR-Céntral Office;
‘Foresi Mariagement Bureau, Regional Offices 2, 3, 6 and CAR, and PENROs
IHugao, Nueva Vizcaya, Quiririo, Nueva Ecija-and oilo.

II. OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

A. Financial Aidit

Unadjusted accounting errors/omissions and uricorrecied accounting deficiesicies

16.

17

18.

Various accountinig’ ‘errois/omissions with an aggregate amount of $463.10

‘million.and variousa¢counting deficiencies such-as incomplete submission of
_reports.and urireconciled differences.among accounting reports and property
.records with an aggregate amount of P99.89 mllllon, affected - the: fair
‘presentation: of the Financial Statements {FS).

Section 2.7 of the Interhational . Publi¢ Sector Accounting.'Staildagkis (IPSAS 1)
provides:that:

“Finanéial Statenieiits shall presént ﬁn}ly the financial position,

Jinancial performiance, and cash- flows of an éntity. Fair

Jpreséntation reguires the faithful repiesentétion of the: effects of
fransactions, other. evems, and conditions iir accordance with: thé
definitions -and recagm!:on criferia for-assefs, liabilifies, revénie;

and expenses. set-oui.in IPSASs.”

The{c ollowmg unadjusted and/or uncdirected:accounting errors/omissions.at year
eird amounting to P463; 102,357.51 affected the reported- Assets, Llabllmes, and,
Net Assetlequ:ty amounting to P3,091,414,857.02, P325 ,449,090.69, -and
$2,765,965.766.33, respectively, details as follows:



Errors/
Omissions-

DENR-
Office

Amount
(absoliite value)

Jsceolgnts
Affected

Assets:

[ “Liabilitics/Net
Assets/Equity

‘Under/(Overstatement)

Non-derécopnition

asscls

of ‘tuned over-

Region
i}

15,737,571.66

Road __
Networks

(17,938.813.48)

Accumulated
Depreciation —~
Road

Netwaorks

2,201,241.82

‘Accumulated
“Surplus/
(Deficit)

'(15,737,571.66)

reclassification of
completed projécls

"PENRO

Hugao-

and

442,398,506.49

‘Construction
i Progress
(CIP): Land
Improvements’

(365,849,454.65),

TQPp-

Infrastructure.
Asscts

(76;886,824.30)

Land
Improvements
, Reforestation

Projecis

"365,849,454.65

Road
Networks

38.976,889.24

“Water Supply
System  °

37,909,935.06

Accumulatéd -

Road
Nélworks

Depréciation - |

(337,772.46)

Accumulated
Surpluy/
{Deficit)

(-337,772.462,

Unreleased checks
al.ycur-end

‘PENRO

-Quiring,
and
Nueva
Vizcaya

4,966,279.36

Cash.in Bank—
Local
Curréncy,
Current
Account

4,966,279.36

Accounts

.} Payable

4,966,279.36

Total Under/
(Overstatement)
of
|_Errars/omissions

(31,109,064.76)

{11,109,064.76)

" Total Errors/
| omisslons

463,102:357.51.

Matiriality Level
(0.5% of CY'2022

Total Assets)

18,323,750,69

19. Also, tlie following: accounting deficiencies with an. aggregate amount of

£99,889,911.70, affected the réliability of the accounts. as presented in the
financial statements:




Defidiencics | DENR Officc | _Accounts Affected “Amounit
Incomplete submission of urt L
Repart:of Physical Count :Lac:;zt:slnvemory ' 144,535.65-
of Inventories
;};:S:::mlfﬁe dl;i:; :::: lé?:ﬁg Various Property, Plant
U e ’ .
aC:;rlt %‘;;‘;;::: pl:':; and Equipment. 1,895,571.50
Property, Plant  and accounts
Equipmént LedgerCard |
Unrecongiled GL and SL . Ad
.Advances 10 202
té::,[:acaist o:: Advances 1o ‘ Coniractors 41,465,393.53
: —= PENRO lloilo
Unreconciled GL and SL/ Guaranty/Securit
balances ‘'of Guaténty/ DepositaFasable. 56,384,411:02
Security.Deposits Payable P Y
1 TOTAL # 99,880,911.70

20. The above-mentioned "defit itjencies sxgmfy weaknesses in-the ‘internal .control
systems, particularly the -agency’s accountmg systems,. atfributed. by the non-
compliance of the. concegned offices with the systems and procedures prescribid
for by thie GAM-for NGAs, which possibly result to the preparations of? unreliable
drid-inaccurate financial statements.

21. Below are some of ihe ciuses of the‘aceou'n‘ting'ercol-;s/oinission§ and deficiencies:

Accounts Affected Causes
Cash @ Non-submission of = Schedule 'of Unreleased.
Checks by the Cashler to’ the Actounting Ofﬁce
precluding the Jatter :from- recording: the
.corresponding: adjustments in 4he books of
-ACCOUNtS,
Receivables % Laxity of ihe Accounlant in monitoring and
supervising the staffii-charge of the'SLs; |
o Wigh tum-over 6f persons in-chiarge of the |
accounts; |
‘o Large vohirhe of fransactions invalved.
Inventdries o Delayed submission by the Supply/Property
Officer-of 1lie necéssdry ‘invéntory reports sucli as- |
Report.of Supplies and Matgiials- 1ssuéd (RSMI) |
1o the Accounting Office du¢ to other work. ‘
assignments. |
Propérty Plantand Equipment | ¢ Constrisction-In-Progress  Ledger Card  not |
updated |
o Inddequate sionitoring of the ‘ASF sibprojects |
fesulted in the hon-reclassification to proper PPE |
account;

.o Laxity of the Accousitant in ihonitoring and
SUpervlsmgthe staff m—charge -of the SLs;




Accounts Affected. :Causes

e Submission of Report of Physical Count of
Propenty Plant and Equipment (RPCPPE) not
complete.

Liabilities ' o Non-submission of Schedule of Unpeleased
.Checks. by the Cashier {0 the Accounting Office,
precihuding ‘the latter from recording the
corresponding adjustmenjs in. the books of
accounts.

o High -tum-over of persons. in-charge of the
-accounts;

o, Laxity in momtormg of the, SLs

22. The misstatements that-arose from these uncorrected accountmg ‘errors/oinissions
ini an aggregate amount of P463,102,357:51, and the accounting deficiencies such
as incomplete subniission of reports and unreconciled dlfferences among
accounting. reports dnd property. .records with an aggregate amount of

23.

‘£09,889,911.70, where the possible effect could be material but ot pervasive,

aft‘écted the fair presentation of the FS.

We recommenc[ed and Mdnagement agreed to require the:

Accountants af FMB, RO II, PENROs Ifugao; Quirino, Nueva Viicaya and
Hoilo to effet,t the necessary adjustment on the errors/omissions with
supporting dacuments to correct the balances:of the.affected accounts in
the. FS;.

‘Qashiers. of PENROs Quirino and Nueva Vizcaya to submit fo the
Accounting Office the.Schedule of’ Unreleased Checks at the. end of each
year for adjustnient in the books of accounts;

Supply/Property Officers.of PENRO ‘Quirino to regularly submit RSMis
to’ tlle Aécounting Office to enable the recording ofissuance of inventories;

Accountants and Supply/Property Officer’s of PENRO Quiriné to regularly
reconcile their accounting and -inventory/property records fo accurately
féflect the balance of Inventories and PPEs in-the FS;

Inventory Committce: of PENRO Quirino to conduct physical count of
inventories in all offices;

Accountant nf PENRO Xloilo to: inonitor strictly and supervise regularly
the. staff-in-charge of the subsidiary ledgers in determining the causes.of
-the discreparéies,. disposition of negativc balances and reconciliations: of
the SLs with the GL, cnisure that the entrics-are reviewed, and the SLs dre
reconciled - monthly with the GL, and request for additiopal staff, if

necessary. E.



24,

B

“The followirig are the Mandgement’s commients:

‘Offire’ ] Comment
Region 1] ' Already effected the adjustment through Journal
: Entry Voucher No.2024:02-000004. dated February
20,.2024.
PENRO Hfugao T During -the exit conférence, the financial analyst
commented that ihis. was.already adjusted in 2024.
PENRO Iloilo : " Already adjusted through JEV Nos. 102-24-01-001

t_iaigd Januaty 12,2024 and 102-24-03-008: dated’
March 15,2024,

t

PENRO Quirino 1 For inventories, the. ﬁngrgcjdl' .aiuj:lyst is curfently in-
! the progess of coordinating witly the property officer
i to submit the repori, while forthe PPE it was already

| rectified 1o the Office-of the Auditor.

|
Othier Financial Observation

Unrecovered Advan?-'es fo Conlraclors

25.

26,

27.

28,

In’a@de:juéte m(;ilnitoﬁng’ and follow-up for the recovery -of the advance
payments: amounting t6 PI1:372 niillion niade fo. varjous contractors of
agroforestry. stlpppr:( facilitics, whosé contracts ‘havée been terminated,
resulted in the non-recovery of cash, which could have been utilized. by the
Agericy in its other sub-projects under the Forestland Management Project.

Volume 1) of thé GAM for NGAs defines.Advances to Contractors as an account
uscd to_recognize amount; advahces to. contractars as authorized by law. The
account’is credited for recoupment of advances.

Sectiof 4, Annex E of the Updated Revised Imiplementing Rules and Regulations
(IRR) of Repiblic Act (RA) No. 9184 provides that, the procuring entity shall,
upon written request of the contractor which shall e submitted as a éonteact
document, maki;an advance payment to the contractor in an-amount not éxceeding
fifteen percent (15%) of the contract price, to be paid.in lump sum or, at the most;

-two instaliments accordingto a schedule;specified.in.the Instructions to Bidders

and other relevant Tender Documients. Tlie Advanee payment shiall be made only
upon_the submission fo and acceptance by the procuring entity of the.irrevocable
standby letter of credit of eguivalent value fiom a. coinmercial bank, a bank
guarantee.or a.surely-bond callable upon demand, issued by a’surety or insurance
companty duly Ticensed by the. Insurance Commission and -cenfitmed by the
procuring entity:.

On March 7, 2023, Audit Observation Memoraridum (AOM) No: 2023-026-102
{2022) was issued by the Audit Team in connection with fhie unrecouped
Advanées to Cantractors for Fund Cluster 02-Agroforesiry ‘Suppert Facilities
(ASF) of the PENRO-lloilo-due to termination of contragts, The recommendations

9




<,

29.

30.

3L

32,

33.

in: the sdid AOM were included-in the Calendar ‘Year (CY) 2022 Managemént.
Letter' (ML) wherein the Managemen{ agreed to, implement; that is: (l) to
prioitize and fast track the-recovery of the advances made to contracfors. whose.
coniracis were tefiinated; and (2) to monitor strictly the financial aspect of the
subprojects.under the FMP.

Verification of the Advances.to Contractors Subsndlary Ledgers (SLs) as of

December 31, 2023 disclosed that, .out of the P14,482,354.54] priot year's
balance, “three. contractors with terminated .contracts, Sl.l" have outstanding

-balances, as follows:

Contractor Name of Sub-Praject Outstanding Balance
.Contractor#] | Barasalon Hanging Bridge (1* unif) P 1,706,150.20-
| Cabatangan Irrigation Pipeline System 5.448,793.88
Contractor #2_| Aglobong Irrigation Pipeline Sysien - 2,683:333.33
"Contractor #3 | Masaroy Access Road ° 1,533,698.63
Total £11,371,976.04

‘On Noveinbei"6, 2023, the- Audit Team sent:an Audit. Query (AQ) inquiringas to '

the specific.actions Laken by the Maiagément iri recavering the amount:and as thie
reasons why.recoupment -was not made.

. On January 10, 2024,1he Management in reply to the AQ, only seni.a status of the

unrecouped advances due to termination of contracts, as:follows:

. L _ , " Date of i .
‘Contractor Insurance Comipany demand letter Date received
.Contractor-#] | Pacific Union Insurance March 17, 2023 | Aprit2,,2023
. Company via JRS
Pacific Union Insurance Mar¢h-17,.2023 | April 2, 2023
Company via IRS
Contractor#2 | Liberty Insurance March 17,2023 | Apiil 1, 2023
Corporation wvia JRS
Contractor #3 | Traveller’s Insurance Surety | March 17, 2023 | April 14, 2023
Corp: vid registeted
mail

The foregomg -observations: showed the Management’s l:xlty in recovenng the

.amount‘paid cohsidering hat after-ihe demand letters sent in Marich 2023, no

further action was. takeri.

Inadcquale ‘monitering and follow-up for the recovery of the advanee payments
amounting to P11,371,976.04 made to various contractors of agroforestry. support
facilities, whose contracts have been terminated, resulied. in.the noi-tecovery -of
cash, which could lave been.utilized by the.Agency in iis other sub-pro;ccts under
the Forcstland Managenyent Project.

10




34.. We recommeitded-and tlic Management agreed to make a follow-up demand
and instituté Gtherr appropriate actions to the insurance. .¢ompanies -of the
contractors with outstandmg advance paymen(s.to recover the amounts paid
to therm.

35. The Management comméiied that.the ‘assistance of the- legal: division of DENR
Regional Office No. V1 has already been sought for the recovery of the.amount
despite efforis-made. by the PENRO to demand payment from the. contractors,
They will also review the status of the surety bond of these contractors especially
those with rio expiiation date,

1

B. Compliance Audit with Other Legal and Regulatory. Requirements
Fund Utilization/obligation aitd disbirsement

36, The total CY 2023. budget of the FMP was not optimally utlhzed résulfing to a
low ‘utilization of P71.22 million of 46% of the total available allotments of
P155.88 ‘miillion that: led. to thé reversion of the unobligated confinuing
allotment amountitg to P82.32 niillion which' could have beeri used to.finance
‘the other acfivities of: the Projcet. Morcover, two targeted outpufs wére still
not-completed as of: Decembier 31, 2023, namely: Land Tenure Issvance.and
Agroforestry Support Facllxtles due to'scveral reasons, thus, attainmentof the
overall project’s objective/purpose was delayed.

37. Section 70 of the Getieral Provisions-of Republxc Act No. 1 1936' states that.all
appropriafions authorized under FY 2023 GAA shall be available for release aind.
obligation for the purpose specified-until December 31, 2023, while for continuing
appmprlaztlons under FY 2022 -GAA, it shall not be. made not later than December
31,2023~

38. Section 3.4 of National Budgct Circular No. 590 dated Janumy 3, 2023:and the
aforementioned general prov:suons also provide. that after. the validity of the
period, .all wirélcased appropiiations and unobligated ailotinént shall lapse, while
unexpended or'undisbursed funds shall revert to the unappropriated surplus-of the
General Fund, in decordance with Section 28; Chapter 4, Book VI.of EO No. 292
and shgll not thereafter- be available. for expendnture except. by subseqitent
iegrslaglve enactment.

39. Thebudgetappropriations provided to governrient agencnes are aimed to-facilitate
the:achievement of its mandate and objectives. thirough vatious projects, programs
and activitics (PPAs), Tiie. effective and effici¢nit implémentation of these PPAs
is anchored. on the timely and appropriate execution of the budget which has

! Gerieral Appropnahons Act of FY 2023
: chubllc Act No..I'1639 or General Appropriations Act of FY 2022
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40,

-always beén thie-thrist of the. government: to ensure the timely delivery of goods

and services to thé public.

The FMP-is on its last year of implerentation. after its réquest for another year

extension has Leen approved by the Philippine. Government .and Tapan
JInternational Coopefation-Agency (JICA). FMP'is ongmally a 10-year project but

currently.on its 121 and {inal year until July 2024.

Fund Utilization-

41.

42:

The FMP lyas a total adjusted current appropnatlbn of: P47,922,000.00 per the
GAA.of €Y 2023 and a continuing apptopriation of £107,958,888. 38, for a‘total
appropriation of £155,880,888.38.

The Statement- of Appropriations; Allotments, Obhgatlons, Disbursements and

‘Balances (SAAODB) of the Project for FY. 2023 Currént and Contmumg

Appropriations showed that qut of the total allotment of P155, 880,888:38, tlic
amount of P71,215,474.8Tor 46 percent was utilized/obligated, leaving a balance
o -P84,665,413.57. Moreover, total disbursements for the year amounted to
P63,225,234.45 or 89 percent of the total obligated amount.

followmg causes disclosed by the FMP,. .among others: (a) nonc or delayed
implementation of project activitiés;. b), unuuhzed re-allocated budget; and (c)
savings generated in excess of ABC:and actual contract price, as illustrated by the

table.below:

Project i
Subcomn_nenf Amount Remarks .
Project Management P 2342,02824 [Nt was not utilized due 0.
Supervision ) postponement.of the canduct of FMP

12.

Class ' Amount ‘Unobligated Unpaid Uti'n | Dish.
| Allotment Obligation Disburseriiént Allotnient Obligation Raie | .Rate
Current )
MOOE -47,922,000.00 | 45,579,971.76 } 43.268,641.88 2,342,028.24 | 2,311,329.88 | 95% | 95%.
Comtinpin . . i
MOOE 30,468,631:29 | 19,777.889.67 | 16;685,490.23 10,690,741.62 | 3,092,399.44 | 65% | 84%
Capital 77,490,257.09 5,857,613.38 3,271,002,34 | 71,632,643.71 | 2,586;511.04 | 3% 56%
Outlay- . - .
Sub- 107,958,888.38 | 25,635,503.05 | 19,956.592.57 82,323,385.33 | :5,G78,910.48 | 24% | 78%
Tofa). ) ,
‘Total 155,880,888.38 '71'.215.414’.81 63;225,234.45 | §4,065,413.57 | 7,990,240.36 | 46% -89%
43. Asshown from the above table, for its'CY 2023 cutrent apprapriations, the Pr oject
was able to-maxiniize: :the ul1hzat|on of its allotments at 95 perceiit, However, for
its continuing appropriations, it was gble to obligaie only P25,635,503.95 or 24
percent of its'total aflotment of £107,958,888.38.
44. The tolal unobligated allotiments amounting to- P84,665; /413,57 was due fo the




Project ! .
Subcoinponent Amount. ‘ Rematrks
National Close: Qut Event. J{ was

' ‘ rescheduled by May 2024.

Site Development 4,435499.99. | Savings from the. procurement, of
support, infrastrucivre for AFVC ¢
Emerprises: such as Agricultural.
Traiiiling. 4nd Coffeé Processing
Facilitiés.
Agroforestry Support 8,340,924.00 | Savings ‘from procurement of ASF
Facilities (ASF) Projects
"58,808,880.19 | Unutilized re-allocated budgef for-
the re-procurement of ‘two (2) ASF
sub-projects. These:are still on-going
i projects,
.Consultancy Services 10,738,081.15:| Due: to the procurement of
Engineering Firm that is no loriger
feasible 10 be pursued and the:
required ¢oncurrence fromJICA was.
not approved

Total P 84,665,413.57

45. Further apalysis of the unpbligated allotment for its CY 2023 confinuing
appropriations disclosed that.out of P82,323,385.33, 94 percent were findnced by
tlie loan proceeds as follows:

Source of Funds Amount Percentage
GOP Counterpait P 4,807.423.06 6%
Loan Praceeds - JICA - 77,515,962:27 | 94%
Total P 82323,385:33 | 100%

46. The non-utilization -of the allotment financed by the loan proceed is
disadvantageous to:the goveinmeiit considering the Joan proceed incur borrowing
cost and inlerést-expense.

47. Being the -primary -agency responsible for the conservation, management,
development and proper. use of the:country’s erivifoniment arid natural resources,
the existencé -of ‘significant :amouni -of ‘unobligated allotments reflects the
Management’s -inability to- maximize the use of its authorized. budgetary
requireriierits thereby depriving the public-of the maximum ‘benefits that:can be
derived from the allocated funds.

Dishui‘sement
48. FMP reportedd disbuisement rate of 89 peréent or-P63,225,234.45-out of the fofal

obligations ‘of P71,215,474.8), leaving an unpaid - obligation. amounting to
£7,990,240.36.. '
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49

30.

.Of the-total disbursed amount.of P63,225,234.45 as of year-end it can be noted
that the disbirsemerit:fate for the contining appropriations registered only a rate,
of 78 percent. The Jow disbursement rate for the cohtinuing appropnauons was

due to delayed - implementation of the remaining project dactivifies and

insufficiency of revolving funds.as a result of the:depletion of the special account.

On flie-other hand, as for the physical accomplishient, the Project still failed to
achieve:its target for the Land Tenure: Issuance (L'T1).and Agroforestiy Support
Facilities (ASF).as of Diecember 31, 2023. It should ‘also be remembered that the

‘non-achievement: of the: 1argets. set by the agency negatively-affécts its fund
utilization because it implics a lack of*absorptive capacity-to.cdrry-out its planned-

programs, Thus,. the alignient of appioved budget for the period vis-3-vis the
project activities scheduled to be impleniented duting the: yedr must be assuiédto
avaid excess allocation of its finds intended for-the proper implenientation and.
délivery of its planned oulput The Project Accomplishmenis Report is
summaiized below.

Outpirts Overall Target

Cumulative % Status/
Ace. Acé. ) Remarks.

10. Waterslied 24 WMPs 24 100 Completed.

mianagement plans WMPs.
(WMPs)
finalized/packaged
.and updated

11. Pattner  ‘Peoples’ | 149 POs 149 POs- 100- Completed.

Organization (PO).
formed, organized,
‘and capacitated

12 Land _ Tenure 149 LTis 02 LTI 68 | Behind

Instcuments (L'TIs) _ schedule.

issued to partner
POs

3. Plantafions 71300 7130008 | 100 | Completed:

“established - Site
Development (SD)

14, Visble 749 T, 100 | Completca.

enterpnseslltvehho
ods established by
‘the partner POs
(Enterprise
Developinie€iit)

15. Agroforestry 102 .92 91 Behind
“Suppor Facilities Subprojects Subprojects schedule.
(ASF) constructed . i
and mainitainéd . in
all. sub-wateished
‘areas.
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5.

52,

Outputs

Overall Target

Cumulative.

Ace.

Acc.. |

Status/
Remarks

~-Farm 1o market

93.35 km

88:36 km

voad

~Pathway

-Hanging bridge

-Reinforced
concrete bridge

-Irrigation pipeline-

system

49,10 km
15 uniis
11 units.

33.05 km
1§.unit5'
11 units:

152’km 123.87 km

2 WMC and. 100

16. Mulfi-sectoral 3
1 PAMB

Watershed WMCs/PAMBS
Management
Bodiés, mcludmg
cost-sharing
mechanisim
established-(Policy
Initidtive)

‘Completed,

17, Site developmient 71,300ha | 100
(SD) plantations

ground validated

71,300 Ha.

N

‘Completed.

34 Project: 34 PMOs 100
Management

Offices.(PMOs)

18. Pioject’
Management
Structires and
Systems.
organized/establish
ed and.operational

Completéed

AS cai be gleaned fromi thié above tablé, LTI and ASF are still Gehind scliedule

-despite the-given #dditional 2 years extension with-cumulaiive accomplishment of

68% and 91%, reSpectuvely

Per inquiry made with the. personnel-under PrOJecl Management.- Dmsxon the
DENR Central Office through Forestland Management Bureau and . FMP Office

:contmuously assist the implemepiting units in facilitating the’ processmg for the

remaining LT] applications (32 People s Organizations (POs) in Cordillera
Administrative Region and 15 POs in. Region 6). He also ‘added that the

delay/concérn in LT} is already beyond the control of the Department and within.

the internal protocolsiof the National Commiission on’ Ind:genous Peopie (NCIP).

However, tlie- récent development relative to this concemn is that-high-level
dialogue among arid between the NCIP and congerned NGAS is ongoing to discuss
and: streamline the requirements for Fre¢ and Prior Inforimed. Consent {(FPIC)
process and olher operational agreements to harmonize programs and activities.

A Tollow up letter dated September 19,2023 was sent to the NCIP t6 supplement
ihese initidtives. While.under the ASF subcomponem the delay is due 1o. the
suspension. of*dll works-on the remaining subprojecis due to non-paymient of
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53.

54.

35.

56.

contractor billings. This is because of the unayailability of funds.as-a result of the

depleiion of the. FMP special account.

Tt was furtherstated that the Project shall facilitate the completion of the. remammg
physical targets- -until first ‘quarter of 2024 in order to. hayve some sufficient.time to
validate the accomplishments and process the, cotr esponding blllmgs Likewise,
the Project shall continue the iniplementation. of the Sustainability Action Plan
and mainsireaming of the Project initiatives to the: regular function of the field
offices. '

The-delays in the. nnplementatlon tirelines.of ASF and issuance of LTJs have an
effect on the.overal- implementation of the project activities-and in the attainyent
of its objectives.

We recommerided and Management agreed to ditect thé Projéct Head to:

a. exergise. Judmous budget planning to rationalize the provision of
funds/allotments. for pro;ect activities to avoid, slgnlﬁcnnt reversion of
fusids;, : '

b. continuously coordinate with the NCIP fo fast track and facilitate the
conduct of the nécessary FPIC process;.

¢, expedite the payment of conttactor billings to catch-up for the delayed
works: '

Management:commented the following:.

a. The project’s budget proposal for'CY 2025 amounting to PhP] 97.0.million is
already limited/confined to the actioal obli gated contraéfs for Site
Development (SD)-and.ASF subcomponents. Hence, the possibility: of budget
surplus canbe avoided. Funds are ‘being requested to cover-the budget deficit
in Lioan Proceeds as a result.of the losses in foreign exchange rates.

b. The. concerned Field Implemeériting. Unit (FIUs) in CAR ‘and Region: VI .are
contmuously coordinating with their respethe NCIP counterparts to. pursue
activities required for the:issuance of the NCIP certification. These initiatives
will. be pursued by the concerned DENR Field Offices once the projéct is
ended as part of their regular activitiés.

¢. Upoi receipt of:the requested. additional revolving fund amounting io Yen
550.0-million or equivalent to. PliP205.0- million fiom JICA. in Decernber
2023, thie F1Us.already begun. processing and. releasing the payments to the
PQOs and contractors; reésulting in the incréase in disbursement for SD.and ASF
from PliP1.885 B (78. 69%) and PhP1.760 B (87.46%), respectively in
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Deceniber 2023, to PhP2,035 B (85. 13%) and PhP1.825 B (92:96%)
_respectively in 15°March 2024.

Reversion; closure, transfer -of balances of dormant cash, unauthiorized accounts
and unnecessary funds

57.

DENRCO FMB, CAR; Regiens]], 11}, and VI and PENROs Quirino, Niieva Ecija

‘has ho dormant cash, unauthorized. accounts; unhecessary special-and trust funds

and related accounts for reyersion-as of year—end in-conformity with Permarient
Committee Joint Circular No. 4-2012, dated September 11,2012, 1mplemenlmg
Executive Order No;: 431, dated May 30, 2005. PENROs: Ifugao, Nueva Vizcaya

.and Hoilo did net report any dormaut cash, unauthorized accounts, unnecessary

special and trust funds and related accourits.in their-ML..

_Nonaliquidalion of Cash Advances

58

59.

60

61,

62.

In'FMB, noadvances were: made to PS-DBM during the year. However, there

were. still unliquidated advances. in prlor years® amounting to 0.15 million-

as-of year-cnd, contrary to the provision of COA Circular No. 94-013.

Itein 4.9 of COA Circular No..94-013 states:that:

“The IA shall return to'tlie SA any unused baldnce fipon qonyafé!jon ofthe
project.”

As of December 31, 2023, Advances10 PS-DBM showed an outs{andmg amount
of P146,440.81, analysxs of the account showed that no advances: were-made

during the year and this balanee pertams to the CY 2019 fund transfer for purchase:
of- common office supplies that remains unliquidated-as of year-end, with details

as follows:

' Delivery
Date Gi::g:k Advances | Receipt | Ligiidation| Advances

No.
M19-
005061
MI19-
014829

P126,206.45 | P146,440.81

03.04:2019 | 831944 | £272,647.26

‘This observation-was among the prior yeai’s audit. observation and Management

commented through their submitted Agency .Action Plan -and ‘Stalus of

Tmplementation (AAPSI) on the audit reconimendations as of Décember 31,2023,

that they-dlready sent letter o ‘the PS-DBM Executive Direcfor requesting for the
reconciliatiori of the remaining balance.

The accounting personnel, whio is: in chéiged in'monitoring the: PS-DBM.account,
explained that no foliow-up demand lefter was seénl o the PS-DBM during ; the
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63.

65.

yéar for this unliquidated balance.since the.accounting unit are still updalmg the
working paper with the.details, Fike APR number and dellvery receipt number,
that the PS-DBM i requestitig to facilitate recoriciliation-of both.records..

Non-compllance witli the provision of COA Circular No. 94-013 consutule the:
existence ' of unufilized balance of advances io PS-DBM. amounting o
P146,440.81 as of December 31, 2023.

. ‘'Werecoinmended arid Management agreed fo instruct fhe Chief, Accounting

‘Uniit to expedite the reconcilidtion of the balances recorded per bookwith the
records of PS-DBM to determirie and eonfirm unutilized funds and request
refund/return of the same,

Managemient commented that the- Accounting Unit. is in constant coordinatian
with PS-DBM for peudmg items and reconciliation of balances perbboks with the'
records of PS-DBM (o determine uhutilized furids and to request refurid/return of
the same, The Management ‘i$ still waiting for- the response ofthe PS-DBM
're'garding-this matier..

Granfing and. liguidation of fmrd fransfers. 1o implementing .agencies and'
‘NGOs/CSOs

66.

67.

DBNRCO CAR, Region 11 and PENROs Ifugao. and Nueva. Ecija have-no fund
transfers made. to National Government Agencies. (NGAs), Local Government
Uhnits (LGUs), Govéernment-Owned or- Controlled Corporations (GOCCs), Non-
Governmental .Organizations/Civil Society- Orgamzattons (NGOs/CS0s) during
the year { for the implementation of the- Project in accordance with COA Circular
No. 94-013, COA Circular No. 2007-001 and COA Circular No.:2016-005 dated
Deceinber 19, 2016. There was-also no unhqmdated fund transferin.prior yeats.

‘Procuremient of goods, consulfancy services and infrastructure projects

FMB, CAR, Regions 11, 1} and VI, PENROs Ifugao, Quirino; Nueva. 'Vizcaya,
Nueva Ecija and ]lmlo procurement transactions during the year werg in
accordance. with the 2016 Revised Implementing Rules.and. Regulations of RA

"No. 0184, and "COA. Circular No. 2012-001 on documentaty requirenients for’

common government transactions. DENRCO. has no procurement during thie year.

Over insurance.of Physical Assets

68. FMB, CAR, Regions. 11, IIL and VI, and PENROS Quirino, Nuéva Vizcaya,

Nueva Ecija and Yloilo had propertics amounting to P54:65 million with
corrésponding insurancé. premium paid amounting to £0.34 million in
accordance witli ‘RA. No. 656, otherivise known as the “Property Insurance
Law"”, hoWever, the FMB over:insured its ph)smal assets dué fo (a) mclusions

“of PPE items acquired priof: to calendar year 2022 with a total cost of P1.14

18




‘million thit should be-eéxpensed in accordance with.COA Circular No. 2022- -
004; (b) inclusions of semi-expendable items amounting to £0.76 million that'
were already issued to end-users;-and (c) double entry of sémi-expendable
‘items:amounting to $0.02 million.

69. Section 5 of RA No. 656; Property Insurance Law, ptovides that "Every
governiment, excep! a munjicipal goversmich! below firsi class, is heieby required
o insure its properities, with the Fund against-any insurable. risk herein provided
and py. the preniiums thereon: C

70. item 5.1{c) of the COA Circulai No. 2018-002.dated May 31, 2018 providesthat:

“Extract froni the Report on the Physical Couni of Property, Plant and
Egitipmen, ds viell as from the.Repart on the Physical Count of Tnventories,

prepared. in accordance. with the provisions of the Govermnent Accounting
Manual,.the data for the PIF peiidining 10 .the insurable-assets ajid interest of
the.govermmen( (excluding impaired properiies for disposal).”

71. Ttetw 4.3, COA Circular No. 2022-004° dated May 31, 2022 states that,

For: issued 1angible itemns acg_ug're‘tjl priorio CY 2022 with amoiuts
from $£]5,000.00 10 below P30,000:00 previously. classified as PPE:

d. The cariying aimount shall be expensed/charge to the following
accounts,.as applicable:

i Accuinulated Surplus/(Deficit) for. NGAs.and GCs classified as
Non-Conimeicial Piblic Secfor Entities; xx

72. Seciion.10(b), Chapter 8 6f Government Accounting Mariual (GAM) Volume |
stdtes that,

Sec. 10 - -Sehri—éaj:enddb?’e Property. Tangible items below the
capitalization threshold of 15,000 shall be accorinted as senti-
expendable property: The following policies apply ds Jollows:

xx b. These tangible items -shall be recognized as expenses ipon
‘issue 1o the end-user.

73. In.compliance with Property Insuraricé Law as amnerided by I,{lgqsideniial Decree
No. 245 dated July 13, 1973, FMB, CAR, Reégionis J], 11] and Vl,7and PENROs
Quiririo, Nueys Vizeaya, Nueva Ecija and Iloilo insured-its physical-assets costing

3 Guidelines on (he lmplementation of: Section 23 of the General Piovisions of Ré'pu!ilic Act No. 11639 also
known as the General Apjiropriations Act(GAA) for FY-2022 relative io the increase:in the capitalization
thresho}d from P)5;000.00.to B50,000.00.

19




P54,653,237.36 with corresponding’ insurance premium pald amounting to:
P343,668.63, as showh below:

Office Amount of Physical Amount of Premiums
Assets. ,
FMB- P 9,402,686.87 P 43,610.51
CAR 1,469,608,00 10,564.51
| Région 11 783,818,50 —_3,812.33
| Regioi 111 1,249,330:00 10,096.66 |
Region VI 1,430,000.00. 9,851.56"
PENRO.Quirino 2,477,930.77 14,176.10
PENRO Nueva 23,440,525:09 -130,331-23
Vizciya .
PENRO Nueva Ecija 5,648,307.63 35,698.59
PENRO Hoilo. 8,751,030.50 85,527.14
Tota1 ) i '52},653,23'_7.,36 ) id .343_,'668.63

are ptesented belows

74 Breakdown of the insured .physical assets-and insurance premium paid by FMB.

PPE and Semi- : Premium oo
Expendableltems | O |  Cost Amout_| PRyment Details
Information and | .86 P PIOR No,
‘Comniuiiication. 3,788.224.99 19,676.70 8450019801
Techyiology dated Mar. 20,
Equipfiient .2023

| Office Equipnient 24, 632,481.96
" Furniture and. Fixtures | 104 1,032,508.20
‘Technical and| 3 | 72,000.00
Sciéitific Equipment

Commaunication 2 20,452.72
Equipment

— 219 5.545,667.87 'y
Sub-total . T 19,676:70 |
.Motor Vehicles 1 896,323.00 PlOR’ No.

4,320.20 | 8450002]827
dated” July G,
2023
1 1,740,187.00 12,100.05 | OR No.
'7400047522
‘dated Dec. .28,
2022
1 1,083,50000 |  5:428;84 | OR- No.
7550062698
‘dated FEeb. 23,
2023
1 137,000.00 2.084.72 | OR No.
-8750011106
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75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

PPE and Semi- ; g Premiui | ———
Expendable Items. Qty. Cost Amount: Payment Defnils
dated July 27,
. 2023
Sub-total 4 | 3857,019.00| 23,033.81
Grand Total 223 | P P
9,402,686.87 | 43,610.51

‘Review of the PIF sibmitted to GSIS discloséd. that various PPE items amounting.
'to P1,137,002.00 acquired priorto calendar year 2022 that should be recorded as.

senu-expendable inventory and - evenlually ‘expensed upon -issuaice -weie still
included,-as shown below:

. PPE items. Oty. Lost.

JInformation and Communication Technology Equipment | 25 | P 813,598.00
Office Equipment 2 46,898.00
Furniture and Fikturées ) 8 204,506.00
“Technical and Scientific Equipment 3 72,000.00
Total ) 38 [ P 1,137,002.00

Tt was-observed that bicfore tlie insurance activity: in March 2023; PPE items-and

‘semi-¢xpendable items-above were already issued to end-users as reflected in the.

Propeity Acknowledgement Report (PAR). The Property Unit issues-the items to

end-users-aftér one-o two days from the date of acceptarice of delivery-of these;
“flems.

The PPE items and senu-expendable jtems were.al] issued fo end-users the same.
year it was acquiired. Hence, the PPE items should be expensed in-accordance with,

COA Circular No.-2022-004 and the senn-eexpendable itéms should be.expenséd

upon issuance-to the end-users Moreover; these itefns should be excluded from:

the PIF submiited to ‘GSIS for insurance.

Fuither, tangible. items recognized .as semi-expendable 1tems that weére alieady’
issued to end-users-were still insured, detsils as.follews:

Semi-Expendable items Qty. Cost’
Information and Commwnication Technology:| 31 P
| Equipment ’ .93,200:92
Office Equipment 17 75,000.68
Furniture.and. Fixtures 95 591,619.00
Total ‘ 143 P
759,910:60

Furthermore, tangible item with -property no. F MB-FMP-] 9-11 -03°9 costing
P16,950.00 with itens- -déscription of Phone, Geotagging. Devices, was reported
twice on PIF under Semi-Expendable Inforiation and Communication

21



80.

8].

82.

83.

Technology and Semi-Expendable Communication. Equipment, hence, it was

Jinsured twice.

The property unit personnel iesponsible for insurdnce disclosed that lie/she.was

riot.aware of Item 4,3 of COA Circular No, 2022-004 and tljat the agency. insures
-all'itéms with the GSIS, regardless of whether-they are issued to end-users or not.

In effect, the insurance of PPE items and senn-expendable iterns. that-sliould be.
expensed afready reslts in higher-insurance premiums and waste of funds.

We re'co,mmen‘dgdaﬁd'Mbnng'ément-a_greed to diect fhie.OIC, Property Unit

to:

a. bé familiarized with the provisions of the recently issued COA Circular
'No. 2022-004;

"b. discontinue the inclusion of the issued items in insurance; and

c.. exeréise diligence in recording. PPEs and semi-cxpendable items iu the
PIF to ensure accuiacy and.corvéctness of physical assets for insurance
coverage.

Managenient .commented that staiting CY .2024, the Property Unit ‘Wil
discontinue the inclusion of issued semi-expendable Property, Plant (PPE) in the
Property. Irisurance Form (PII') Moreover, thie Unit'will exert efforts to further be
familiatized with the prowsnons 6f COA Circular No. 2022-004. Finally, the unit
will also exercise diligence jn recording PPEs and seml-expendable items: to
¢énsure the accuracy and correctness of’ physical assets for insurarice coverage.

Non-disposal of Unseiviceable Properly

84. Unserviceable pir operties from CAR, PENROS Jfugao and Tlojlo with. an

85.

aggregate amioitnt of $£2.57 million remained not dxsposed of as at year-cnd
contrary to Scction 79 of PD -1445, thus exposing them to further
deterioration and decreasing their réalizable value.

Section 79 of the PD No. 1445 otherwise known' as tlie Govemnment Auditing
Code of the: Phxhppmcs provndes that:

“When.goveinmeh! properiy.has become urserviceable for-any.cause, or is
no: longer. iéeded, if shall, upon applicdtion- of the ‘officér accountable
iherefore; be nwpecied by Ihe ‘head of the agency or-his duly authorized
represeniative in-the presence of ihe auditor conceined and, If "found: fo be
valueless or unsalable; it may be destroyed in thejr presence:’
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‘86.

87

88

»

89.

90,

“If-found 1o be valuable, -it may be sold at public auciion 10 the highest
bidder under the superwsron of the proper committee on award or similar:
body in the presence of The aiiditor concerned oi ofher duly ailiorized
representative of the Conintission; afier-advertising byi prinied nolice in the
Official Gazefte, or for not less ihan three .consecutive days. in amy:
nevespaper of gener, al circulation; or where the value of the.properly does
Ho! watrant the expense of Jublication, by notices posted for-a liké period
in-atleast tfiree public places in the Tocality where the property:is fo-be sold.
In the event that the public-auction fails, ihe propeity may be sold at a

_privafe sale at such price.us.may be.fixed by the same commiitee or body:

conceried.and approved by thé Commission,

As .of December 31, 2023, CAR, PENROs Ifugao and lloilo hiad unsérvicéable
properties that were. not disposed of consisting of various semi-experidable

‘properties and property, plant and equipment with a total cost'of P2,571, 845.17..

as:follows:
Office Particulars . -Amount,

.CAR Semi-Expendable Property P 109,334.17

Properly Plant and BEquipment 77,671.00

-PENRO Ifugao SemizExpendable Property '119,840.00

_ Property Plant and Equipment 1,342,000.00

PENRO  Iloilo Property Plant and Equipment 923,000.00

_Total P. 2,571,845.17
In CAR, tlie agéncy conductéd a disposal -of ‘property 'in August- 2023 for

unserviceable properties. as of April 30, 2023, ‘The properties that were not
disposed as: al year-end were those declared as unserv:ceable duriig the physical
inventoty in October to December 2023,

It has been also observed that the most of the uriserviceable property were not
voluntarily surrendered by the. end-users to the. Property Unit as soon as these
became unserviceable, Thus, it was only during the phys:cal inventory when the:
Property Unit personiiél asked about the ¢ondition of the propeity that most of the:
vnserviceable property were surrendered.

Likewisg, in. PENRO Iloilo, it was found-out that the satd unserviceable properties
were not: dlsposed as of December 31, 2023-was because the Accountable Persons
‘reported the PPE:as unserviceable orily in December 2023, afier determining that

these properties-were -beyond, repair.

If the-above properties were surrendered upon knowlédge-that these.are no: longer
serviceable, it could have been dlsposed «earlier to prevent them from further
deterioration whicli- may decrease their realizible value.
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91.

We recommended and Management agreed to direct the:

a: accountable officers.to monitor the propertles under’ their custody and
report. |mmcd|aiely the unseiviceable itenis to the Praperty
Officer/Inventory and ‘Disposal- Committee for.prompt reporting in the
IIRUP; and

b. Inventory and Disposal Committee to-see o it that all unser viceable
propertics of the ageney are disposed immediately fo- avoid further
deterioration and decrease in realizable value.-

92. Management of CAR commented that they already issuéd a memorandum dted

February 22, 2024. relteratmg the- scheduile of return of unsérviceable propeity.
The Management also committed to dlSposeihe unserviceable property.

Delayed sub»ussion/mcompleie supporting: -docurherits of goveriiment:
contiacts/POs

93.

94,

95.

In PENRO Jfugao, copy of government contracts, purchase orders and their
supportinig documents’ totaling 190 with corrésponding’ amoint of P7.29
million weré not submitted within the préscribed period; with delays ranging
from 1 to 101 days, while in PENRO Nueva Vizcaya, 34 purchase orders with
an aggregafe amount of P1. 49 ‘million were submitted on time bué not
substantiated ‘with the required documentation contrary to Item 3.2.1 of
COA Circular No. 2009-00) dated February 12, 2009, thius precluded the
conduct of timely auditorial review.

COA Circular No. 2009-001 dated.February 12, 2009 provides the restatement
with ainéndrivent of COA. Circular No. 87-278 and COA-Memorandum2005-027
re; submission of copies-of ‘government contracts, puuchase orders and their
supporiing documents to the Comiiission on Audit. Iteni 3.2 thereof states:.

“3.2 Purchase-Orders

3:2.1 A copyofany purchase ovder ir respectwe of amount, and each and
every.suppoiting document, shall; within. five (3) working days fiiom
issuance thereof,: be submitted 10 the Auditor concerned. Within-the
same period, the-Audilor: shall review and poiit out to managemem
defects amf/o; def iciencies, if any, in the same-manner prpwded in
the second and third: sentences. of Item 3.1.4" hereof.” (emphasis
added).

Monitoring showed that PENRO Ifugae incurred 20-101 day's delay in submittinig
its.copy.of contract-and purchase orders, as.shown below:-
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Na tﬁrc of Boyond S days T
.contracts/POs Total m!mber Total Amount delaye d
Goods 101 ?-2,039,993.90 10]
‘Services ] 89 5,250,024.30 20
Tdtal P 7,290,018.20

96, On the other hand, 34 POs with an aggregate amount of P1,491,925 were ﬁmély

97.

98.

submitted fo the audit team by-the supply/property officer of PENRO ‘Nueva
Vizeaya. However, it was observed that the required supporting documents to the

POs were not subinitted. These.documents include, but are not limited to, copies’

of Purchasé Requests, Abstract.of Quotations, Request for Quotations and other
documents peculiar to the contract and/or to.the mode. of procureinent.

The delayed submission and submission with incomplete-supporting-documents
of contracts aivd purchaseé orders precluded:he conduct of timely auditorial review
thereof’.

We recommieénded:and Management of PENROs Tfugao and Nueva Vizcaya
agreed o require théir réspective. supply/property officers to fully comply
with Ytem 3.2;1 of COA Circular No. 2009-01 dated February 12, 2009 by-
submitting all copies of government contracts and purchase orders within the
prescribed five. (5) days period with complete supporting: décumenits from
é_xgéuti_on:/issuancc, thereof.

*

99: .Mallggélneht of PENRO Nueva Vizeaya acknowledged their lapses and

committed fo provide copies of the-supporting docuients and assured that they

" -would fumish these documents once.the POs are perfected.

Cosiypiliance with Tax Laws.and Regulations

100.FMB, Regions 3, 6 and CAR aiid PENROs Ifugéo, Quiririo, Nueva Vizcaya,

Nueva Ecija and Iloilo withheld taxes on government purchases:and contract.of
services fiom shppliers/contractors amounting to $29;513,845.61 and properly
tfemitted P27,394,269.98 during the year, leaving a balance of $2,119,575.63
reinitted in January 2024, in dccordance. with Revenue Regulation No. '10-2008.
dated July 2008. Details are preserited below:

DENR Office Withheld Remiited . Balance
FMB TP 4;528,984.13 P 3,306.052.63 P 1,222,931.50
CAR 190,765.10 190,765:10° 0.00
Reg ion-11] 12,404.16 12,404.16 0.00
Reg‘lon Vi 17,045.14- 17,045.14 | 0.00
THugao ' 3.076,213.57 3,076,213.57 0.00.
Nueva Vizcaya. 3,262,339.58 3,262;339.58 0.00
Quirino ] ,07& 562:82 859,820.98 211,741.84
Nueva Ecija. 1,517,059.26 832,156,97 684,902.29
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DENR Office Withkield - Remifted Biilance
| Noilo, 15.837,471.85 ‘15,837,471:85 . 0.00.
Total P 29,513,845.61 P 27,394,269.98 P -2.119,575.63 .

Compliance with National Insurance Act of 1995 (PhilHedlth)

101.Monthly remittances-to the PhilHealth of EMB for-its contraet of service
personnel’s premium’ contnbutmns did not tally. with the amount withheld
during the. month resulfed to an unremifted balance of P0.02miliion.
Moregver, the prior years? balance of #0.02 million remains unremitted as.of
year-end.

102.PhilHealth' Board Résolution No. 2133 s. 2016 approves for ‘the mandatory
-coverage. of md;wduaf/s dlrectly hired job orders (10s) and project-based
contractors (PBCs) in:the government as Members of the Jnformal. Economy, and
aiithorizes pgoveriiment -employers. to withliold and remit. their full premium

‘contiibutions’ as. Individually Paying Members tinder ihe -Group Enrolment
‘Scheme.

103.The IRR of National Health Insurance Act of. 1995 (Republic Act. ‘1875 as
Aménded by Republic Act 9241) provides that:

“SECTION 162. Failuve/Refusal i6 Remit Conti lbulwm =~ Any
employer or officer authorized to collect contributions who, afier
collecting or deducting the manﬂ:ly .confributions due.from hisfits
ermployées, fails or refiises to remit- said. contributions to the
Coiporaiioni witliin thiity (30) days from the date thép becomé:dae
shall be pr esumed 10 have miisappropiiaied sueh contiibution and
shall suffer ihe pelmfties hereunder indicated and those provided
Jor in Article- 315, par 1 (b) of the Revised Penai Code on Swindling.

The fine shall be in addition ‘o .ihe- outstanding -applicable:
contribution receivable from. tlie eniployer. and shall be miltiplied
by the tatal manber of employees of ihe.firm. " (emphasis supplied).

104.Review of the Geneéral Ledger (GL) ‘showed -that the agency withheld the
PhilHealth- premium conitibutions. of" contract of* service. amounting to
P161,902.28 and rémitted a total amouint of £139,972.54 resultitig i an uhder-
réinitlance 61 $21,929.74. Details are-shown bclow;

Undex(Over)

Period Deductions Remittance Remittance per-
Month |
January P 1740131 | P 16,497.31 P 904.10.

-| Eebruary 21,767.92 21,767.91 | . 0.01
March ) 24,092.26, 24,204.78 {112.52)
April ) 17,754.46 17,754.46 L=
May ) 20,558.94. 20,559.65 (0,71
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Under (Over)
Period Deductions, Remittance Remittaice per
) : ‘Monih
June i .19,408.96 9,647.37 9,761.5%.
July* - - . -
| August® a z -
September*- - - ] -
QOctober 15,777:95 | ) 15,711.95 -
Noveémber 13,763:11 13,7631 ) -
Deccember 11,377.27 - 11,377.27
Total P 161,902.28 | P 130972.54| P 21,929.74

*The witlihalding and remitianée for this period-is:imider Regular Fund.

105.Anialysis of femittaince per morith showed thiat there were under/over remittances
amoumting to P21,929:74: which pertains to the followmg

S . Under (Oyer) - )
Period Remittarice Remarks
[£500.72 -withheld amount for
January b d 904.10 | December-29, 2022 salary; P3 38 ~
under femittance for January 2023,

February’ 0.0} | ‘Variance-on rounding off.

, . Over-reinittance of premium
March (112.52) contribution of one-COS stafy:
May (0.71) | Variance.on rounding off.

. g | Withhield aniqunt from June 16-30,
June 9,76159 2023 payroll.

i 277 97 | Withheld amount from December 2023,

Decénber 11,377.27 still unremitted as of thiis date.
Total P 21,929.74

106.Upon _inquiry with the. HR personnel, who is responSIbIe for checking the.
PhifHealth withholdings of contract of service, these variances can be allrtbuted

to the lack of reconciliation between the monthly witlilioldings anil the amount t6.

be remitted before.the actual remittances wére niade due to voluminous work:

107.Moreover, it was further disclosed tliat the prior:years’ balance was not rémitted
as of year-end, as summiarized below:

Particular’ Withheld ‘Remittance Balaiice
Prior years’ balance | P 34,05745] P 5,338.71 P 2871874

108.The unremitted balance of $28,718.74 pertains to plemm'm coittributions from
Deceinber 2022 amounting to £22,544,76, which reiiiain unfemitted as of this date
.astheyare waiting for ayailable funds. As advised. by ihe Phi liealth, payment for
the December 2022 PhilHealth was made through Advice to Dehit Account
(ADA)under 102-004 dated January31 2023, however; at.the {ime: 1hey.made the

payment the system of PhilHealth was not yet ready, heénée, the payment was.
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caucelled Meanwhile, theremammg balarice of P6,173.98, whlch pertainsto priot
years contributions: thhheld is §till:subject to reconciliafion.

109:The non-remiftance of the withheld premium coniributions deprives the
PhilHealth of fespurces to invest and fund the claims of its members. while the

concerned COS employees were unplotecled/depnved 'of the benefits due to the’

‘non-remittance of PhilHealth insurance-premiums.

110.We recommended and Mnnageim:nt agrced.to instruct the Chief, Accounting

Unit, .and the Chief Human Resources Unif to:

a.. reglariy. perform reconciliafion to ensure. that the tofal amount
remitted tallies with the.amounit deducted each- month-

b. take action to address the current year under remitfanee of

$21,929.74;

c. remit imnicdiately the Decembier 2022 b‘alance of P22,544 76-ns.s00n
:as the funds are available; and

d. -récondile prior years’ unremitted/outstanding balance of P6,173.98
and remit inimediately, if warranted.

1T}.Management commented that-clieck-nos. 856425 and 856426 botli dated March
22, 2024 were already prepared for the iemittance of the unremitted Phillieaith
p;cmmms for CY 2023 and 2022, respectively. While on the réconciliation of
prior years® balance, the following.adjustments were recorded during CY 2025:
JEV Nos. 2023-09-00i 841, 2023-12-003067, 2023-12-0031 12, 2023-12-003125,
2023-12-003127. They will continue the reconciliation effoits and vemit any
oufstanding balance, if warranted.

112:Results of the audit team’s verification of the.check issued disclosed that check
no. 856425 was reported as cancelled check while check no. 856426 amounting
to P22,544.76 was remitted to Phillealth on April 4,'2024 as payraent for'the
December 2022 premium contribution with Official Reteipt no. 04694116,
Moreover, it was revealed thai the adjusiments made under-the. JEVs mentioned.
above pertain-to the Regular Fund and not to:the FMP. Hence, the. Audlt Team
maintairns its position 1o.sustain thé recotnmendations a, b, and d,

Hiring of and payment to job-orders, contractual and:consultants

113:CAR, Regions Ii; 11l and V], PENROs ifugao, Nueva Vizcaya, Nueva Ecija and
Iloilo hited 153 individuals. covered with Contract of Service (COS) as: of
Décember 33,2023 in-accordante with CSC COA DBM Joint Circular No. }
daied June 15,2017, as updated by CSC-COA DBM Joisit Circular No. 2, 2020,
dated October 20, 202,0, to provide technical assistance and perform financial and
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administrative-functions for the FMP. Their salaties:and other compensation were '.

charged against Maintenance. and. Other Operating Expenses (MOOE) under

Other Professnonal Services: accoupt in. the total amount of $14,686 ,310.72, as.
authotized uiider DBM Ciicular Letter No. 2013-5 dated July 22, 2013. Defails

are as follows:

GAD. Budget, Utilization and Accomplishinents

114.The FMP attributed the arnount of £47,922,000.00 or 30.74 percent. of the total

budget of ihe Project of P155,880,888, 38 for GAD programs and. activities, in

. compliance with RA No. 7192, the Women in Devclopment and Nation. Building
Act.

Enforcement/setilement of Suspensions/Disallowances/Charges

115.In ‘CAR, disallowances-that have become final and-executory.amounting to
P2.21. million. weie not:settled as. of year-end, whicli may result in the
enforcement of civil liability pursuaiit to Rule X)I¥ of the 2009 Revised Rules
of Procedure of the COA..

116.Section-48 of PD No. 1445 proyides that any person aggrieved by the decision of
-an auditgr.of any governmerit dgency intheisettlement of'an account or clairn may
within six months from receipt of a.copy of the decision appeal i writing 1o the
Commission.

117,Section 51 of the PD further provides thata decision of the Commissjon.or ofany
auditor- upon. any matter within its.or his jurisdiction, -if ot appealed as herein
provided, shall be final ‘arid executory.

118:Thete were. no -audil suspensions, disallowances and charges- issued nor
setilements-made for the year. As of December 31, 2023, -the Project had. an
outstandmg dlsallowance of P2,206,432.05 broken down as: follows

119.As shown above; only 7 out-of .57 and 8.out of 27 persons liable filéd air appeal
against ND Nos.- 16-006-102-FMP{*12)(*13) and 16-005:102<(FMP)(*14)('15),
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T No. of Hired ~ Salaries charged to-
DENR Office COs/30s. MOOE.
CAR T _ P - 2,111,269.10
Hugao 27 , “No aniount stated.
| Region 2 2 500,285.57
Nueva Vizeaya 20 No amgunt statéd. |
"] Region3 3 . 391,332.80 |
Nueva Ecija 25 2,813,567.41
| Region 6 4 . 520,914.68:
loilo i 65 8,348,941.16
Total 153 . o 14,686,310.72.



‘Status Date Number Amoun¢. Remarks
Final and e;.e'cutory 06/28/2016 | 16-006-102- "P1,394,634.50 | 7.0f S7.1L..
[For issuanice of NFD fo FMP (12)("13): .appealed
persons liable (PL) who [07/25/2016 | 16-005-102- 811,797.55 | 8of 27 PL,
did:nof file an-appeal]. (FMP)('14)('15) -appealed |
Total 12,206,432.05 {

respectively. Notice of Fmahty of Detision shall be issued to 1he ‘other persons
hablc, there being no appealed.filed within the reglementary period.

120,A COA Order of Execution (COE) shall alsp. be igsued to énforce the settlerhent
of an audit disajlowance; whenever the persons Jiable therefor refuse or fail to
settle therm afier the decision has-become final and iexecutory. Non-compllance
with the COE shall be reported to the General Counsel, through the COA Director
concerned, who shall take any or all 6f'the following actions:

a. Recommend: to the Commission Proper to cite defaulting party in
contempt;,

b. Refér the mattér.to-the Solicitor Gedicral for the filing of appropriate civil

. suit

c. Refer the case ‘to ilie. Ombudsman for the filing of appropriate
adniinistrative or cfiminal action.

121.We recommended -and Manégem.ent agreed to enforce complj‘_ancc by the
persons-liable with thé Notice.of Finality and tlic COA Order -of Execution
once these are received.. '

122.The Mariagement commerited that they are just waiting for-the issuance of COA
Order of Execution to &ffect the covresporiding salary-deductions.on the payrol} of
the persons Jidble. )

123.Fof CY 2023, FMB, CAR, Reglon 1} and PENROs Quirino, Nueva Vizcaya and
Hoilo had total sudit suspensions, disallowances and. charges. as suminarized

telow:

Beginning Issucd this Period | ‘Beginning’
Balance (January 1'to Balancé.
(January 1, December 31, 2023) (December 31,
2023) NS/ND/NC NSSDC -2023)
Suspension - - - i-
Disdilowance | £ 9,981,966.37 | $-10,761:00 [ P 676,800.00:| P 5.315.927.37
Charge - - - -
Total | § 9,981,966.37 | P 10,761.00 | §.676,800.00 | P 9,315,927.37

124.In FMB, the- unsettled disallowances. amounting to £1,491,236.00 pertam to
absence of legal’ basis related to paynient of honoraria and notice.of suspensions
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that became disailowance for failure to submiit within 90 days the required
‘documénts: The disallowance issued during the year amounting to £10,761:00
pertains; to_ inapptopriale reimbursement of ‘thé fares of personnel. durmg their-
official local travel, from 1esndence to- their permanent official station and vice
versa,

1,25..T11§.disallowahce of CAR ftotaling 2,206,432.05 pertains to the discussion above.

126.In Region 1, the disallowances of P2,483, 138.49 were appealed but affirmed by
the Cluster Dxrectar The: appellants fuither appealed to-thé: Coimmission Proper
but ho-decision has.been received as of this writing,

127.0ri the other hand, the ‘unseifled disallowances of PENRO Quirino refer to
payment of honoriria for the years 2016, 2017 and :2018- amounling to
P331,838.50.

128.Jn Nueva Vizcaya, the disallowances amounting fo P1,554,100.00 also pertain to
the disallowed payments of honorarja to personnel charged against the FMP. for
calendar years. 201 7,2018; 2019.

129.While in ' PENRO Iloilo, ongoing setllemepis of NDs |ssued in prior yeats are
bemg made through- deduction from payroll of the persons ljable amounting io
£1,249.182.33.

Otlier Conipliance Audit Issues

130, The Registry of Seml~13xpendable Property Issned was not .maintained by
PENRO Ifugao, while it is not acgurately and completely maintained by
CAR. In addition, Inventory Custodian Slip (ICS) control numbei's wére not
.assigned for low-valucd and high-valucd items in PENRO Ifugao while ICSs
issued were mot renewed at least every three years in CAR contrary fo
provisions 6 GOA Circulir No. 2022-004,

i31.0tem 4.7.4 of COA Circiilar No. 2022-004 provides that the Régistry of ‘Semi-
Expendable Property Issued (RegSPI) shall bé maintainéd. in the Property and/cr
Supply” Division/Unit for each class of issued seml-expendable pioperty. The
Property: and/or Supply Custodian.shall record promptly the issue, return, reissue,
disposal, and other information aboul the properiy. if returned and the
'descnptnon/mformatlon about the:asset: Tt shall be:maintained by fund. ICS shail
be rhaiiitained -continuously and recorded in sequential.manneeto keep track of
any missing ICS. Likewise, itefn 4.1 also requlres that. JICS:shall b issued to the end
user and shall’ be renewed every three years or every time ihere is a thange in
:custodxanshlp/user of the: property:

132.Item 4.14 of the same Circular also states- that, for proper maintenance of
lnventory Custodian Sip (JCS), the Property and/ar.Supply Division/Unit shall
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assign separate ICS control number for Jow=valyed items and high-valued items, -
Segregation of ICS for semi<expendable property, will ensuré proper monitoring
of accountability: particularly for l’ugh-valued items which accountability only
expires after the return of the jtem or in case of loss, irpoi approval of tlie réquest
for relief from property accountability.

133 .Coiitrary to the foregoing, the supply/pmpeﬂy off icers of PENRO Ifugao have not
maintained the RegSPI and did not assign separate 1CS control numbers to fow-
valued and higli-valited items because: they thought the Reporl. of ‘Semi-
Expendable. Property Issued- (RSP]) was enough. Also, they just continued. the
agenoy s sequential numbering of 1CS which does not deterinine the. valué:of the
items.

134.As .mentioned in the aforesaid rules and regulations, the RegSPl functions
sifnilarly:16:SPC, however, only a registry is reéommended 1o be maintsined since
issued semi-expendable property are alfeady -derecognizéd fir the books of
accounts. '

135.In the absence of RegSPJ, -and ‘without sepma[e 1C$' control numbers for low-
vilued and high-valued.itéms, the whereaboilts, condition, and tie.expiration of
accountabilities on jssued semi-experdable properties were not nionitored.

136.0n the other liand, in CAR, the Registry of Semi-Expendable Property lssued as
of .December 31, 2023 ‘was not completely maintajned because no reference
document was mdlcatcd in. the Registry for re-issued and returned semi-
expendable properties and the ICS number is not tonsistent with: the prescribed
numbering structure: for low-value.and high-value.tiniés.

137.The ICSs were not also renewed at least every thrée years. According te the
Pioperty Officer; no JCS were reriewed yet though a consolidated JCS: pef
personnel were prepared in December 2023 but were not yet issued for signature
due to:the ongoing reconciliation of records.

138.The lapses on.tlie-maini¢nance of the: Reglstry and‘the non-renewal of IES can be
attributed to' the lack of .manpower 'in the Supply/Propetty Section. The
‘Supply/Property Officer and staff-also have other designations such as member-of
Bids -and' Awards Comnnttee BAC) Secretariat and other Regional ‘Office
Commitiees.

139.We recormmended and Mansgement of PENRO Ifugadand CAR agreed to
require their respective Supply/Propérty Officer to maintain dccurately and
compiétely the Registry of Semi-Expendable Property Issied and enisure fhe
renewal of ICS every three years and that a separate control number is
assighed to. low-valued -and high-valued items;

32




‘We: also lecommended and Management of -CAR agreed ‘that the

Administrative Dwis]on assign o -staff to temporarily assist _the:

Sipply/Property Officer in the preparation of transfer documents,. updating
of thie Registry and. renewal of ICs,

140.For PENRO Mugao, the Management-commented that the reports’ weie already
submitted to the Office of the Auditor.on Marcli 27, 2024. While the Management
‘6f CAR. informed the Audit Team 'that they have already designated a Staff to

prepate the transfer documents, update the Registry and. renéw tlie-1CSs. The.

cuirent Workload of the personnel was; -already tumned over to another
Administrative Division personnel,

Déficiericies in'the conduct of physical inventory

141.No Inventory Committee was constituted by CAR for the conductof:physical
inventory for the. one—txme cleansmg of PPE account balances of the Agency
contrary to Item-5.2 6f COA Circular No. 2020-006, resulting in the pairtizl
conduct-of one-tiine cleansing activity.

142.1tem 5.2.0f COA Circular No, 2020-006 dated January 3T, 2020 requires. that the
Head of the Apency -create an.Inventory Committee composed of adequate
nuinber of members to be able to complete the physical inventory in three moriths
or less: Item.5:3'also'statesthat the members of the Inventory-:Commiitee shall be
temporarily velieved-of thieif regular duties to devote their full time jii the conduct
of the phiysical iniventory taking until the same is completed

143 Based on thé Physical Inventery Plan (PIP), a Special Ordet should have been
prepared on Séptember 1.1, 2023 for tlie creafion of an Investory Comimittee. No
Special Ordér, liowever, was issued for the said purpose.

144.Thus, forthe conduct of mventory in C'Y2023, the.Agency ‘was still guided by
Special Order No. 829 series of 2021 dated Noveinber 8, 2021 wlhich was issued
1o reconstitife the DENR-CAR Regional Property Inventory Committee with a
function fo conduct physical count of the propemes and submit a RPCPPE: No.
functions were indicated relative. 1o the activities for the ong-time cleansing.

145.During the physical inventory from October to Detember 2023,-only the two.
Inventory Committee Secretariat from the Property Unit dnd an :Accounting
‘Section personne] conducted the phystcal mventory The-other §ix members of the
'lnventm Y Commlttee were. not able to-join the inventory taking since they have
duties and meetingsto attend toas vaxs:on/Sectxon Chiefs, These members of the
JInventory Committee, however, were the ohes wlio signed the RECPPE.

146.Since the inventory taking was conducted only by three personnel, the inventoty
taking was not coinpletely perforined.
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147 The conduct of physwal inveitory.for the-one:time' -cléansing has been-started
since 2020 but:it is not being: completed due to:the non-canstitution of Inventory
Committee specifically for the -activity which. requires that members of the.
Committee be- tempotarily relieved of their régular duties to-devote theirtime for
the-one-time cleansing procedutes,

148 We recommended and Management agreed that the Regional Executive.

Director issu¢ a Special Ordei- for thié creation of Inventory. Committee for

the one-time cleansing of PPE account bdlances and monitor the.

implementation of the activity withjn the fimeline set.

149 Mansagenient ¢ommented that. prehmmaty aclivities. such reconciliation of

records, renewal of Property Ackiiowledgement. Reports (PARs) shall be
conduicted priorto. the constitution of the' Inventory : :Commiittee. Deadlines had
already been set for the reconcnl:atlon of records. The members of the Inventory
Cominittee for the one-time cleansing shall come from the PET\_R Offices and
Regional Office: '

150 The Inventory Conunt Form was not used in the physical count of PPEs of

- PENRO Ifugao contrary to Item 6.2.3 of COA Circular No.2020-006 because’
the Inventory Committee immediately pl:epared RPCPPE by verltylng the-

existence of recorded PPEs only.

151.COA -Circular No. 2020-006 .provides the following procedures for mventory
taking;

The phys:cal count .shall be. recorded/documented daily. i a
stqndard Inventoiy Count Form (IC‘F) using the for mal i Anniex:A
of this Circular, which shall be used asithe basis in the prepar ation
af ‘RPCPPE aficr the pliysical couni.

PPEs fourd at staiionor items hol iincluded'in the inventory working. -
paper.s, but there.is a reasonable basis 1o consider the same as

owired by the agency, -shall hl.ewrse be mcluded in. the physrcal
coupt and tagged with property Jlfcker‘s ‘These items shall be
described as. “found at sfation™ which shall be. indicated undér-ihe
“Remarks" colunm of the ICF.

152.Contrary to the foregoing, the Jhwentory Committee did ot use*the Inventory
Count Form:in the' physmal count of PPES. liistead, they.immediately prepared the
RPCPPE by veiifying the existence of PPEs: recorded only in the RPCPPE of the-
previous year plus. the purchases during the year. However, the RPCPPE. of
‘CY2022 was not vérified.

153.Thus, PPEs that may have been found-at station were iiot included'in the RPGPPE.
Conseguently,.the PPEs recorded in the-books may not be.complete.
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154:We recomriiended and Management agreed that for the one-time cleansing
of PPE, the. Taveitory Coniniiftee. use the Inventory Count Form in the
physical count of PPEs and include PPEs found at station. in thic ICF.

155.Fhe Manayment-‘c:ommt:med to.adhere with the-audit recommendation.
i.  STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEARS® AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS
156.0ut of 25 prioi’ year’s audit. recominendations, 19-were ir‘riplemeuted and 6 were

not :implemented; of which'4 observations. wefe réiterated -in this Management
Letter with modification as.summarized below:.

Status of Implementation | No. of Recommendation
Implemented 19 '
"Not Jmpleinentéd: 6
Tofal . 25

157.The. results. of thé validation of the implementation. of prior years’
recorimendations are presented'in Annex H.

IV. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

158, We wish to express our-‘appreciation to the Managenient aind staffof tie DENR
fot thie cooperation and assistance. extended to our. Audit Teams during our audit.

159.We request that a status report. (in hard and soft copies) on the aclions 1o the
recommendations be submitted within 60 days frorh recéipt of this Management
Letter pursuant ‘to. Section 97 of ‘the General Piovisions of the. General
Appropriations-Act for'FY 2023 (RA No. 11639) usinig the attaclied Agency

Action Plarn and Siatus of Iinplementations (Aniex I)

Very truly:yo

*  LOREL{E M. PLACIDO
_OIC-Supervising Auditor
DENR
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Copy furiished:

Director Mclissa Grace B. Martinez
Cluster 8 - Agriculture and Environment
National Governinent Audil Sector
Commission on Audit

Quezon City
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DEPARTMENT OF 'ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
KAGAWARAN NG. KAPALIGIRAN AT LIKAS YAMAN

BACONG PILIPINAS

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS '

Thie managemeut of Department. of Environment and Naturidl Resources (DENR) is
tesponsible for all information and representations contained in the accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Fijtancial Position as at December 31, 2023 and fhe related
Consodlidated.Statement of Fmancml Performance, Consolidated:Statement of Cash Flows;
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Nét Assets/Equity, Conisolidated Statcment of
Comparison:of Budget and Actual Amhounts; and: the Notes to Financial Statements for the
year then ended unnder Fund Cluster 02 — Forestiand Management Project (FMP). The
consolidated. financial statements have been prepared it conformity with the Intemational
Puiblic: Sector Accountitig Standards. (IPSAS) and. generally ;accepted. state accounting
principles, and réflect amounts thai are based-on the best estimates and informed judgment’
of management with an appropriate-considcration to materiality.

I this regard; ‘managéinent maintains a sysfem of "accounting and reporting which provndes-
for the. pecessary internal controls to ensire that transactions. are properly -authorized and
reécorded, asscts-are safeguarded against unauthorized.use or disposition and liabilities are.

recopgnized.
IMELDA R.DELACRUZ  ATTY.ANALIZK REBUELTA - TEH
- OIC-- Director ‘Undérsecretary
Financial and Management Sefviée Finance, Inférmation Systems and
‘Climatc Change:
Date Signed | Date Signed.

Visayas Avenuc; Diliman, Quezon Cify 1100, Philippines.
www.dehrirov.ph




Annex B

‘ REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES:
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND'NATURAL RESOURCES
' CENTRAL OFFFICE.
" Visayas Aveniie, Dilimag, Quezon Cify -
Consolidsted Condensed Statement of Kinancial Position

As of Dcceniberﬁl.,'zﬁiS
2023 2022
ASSETS Notes
.Currerit Assets
Cashrand Cash quivalents 5. P 19276132325 P 25234,164.85
"Receivables [ 1.704,331.96 5,378;669.46
‘Inventories: ' 7 307.943.65 4483547
Other Curreni Assct, 8 43,506,024.36 §0,902,671.73
Total Curvent Asséts "218,579,623.22 115,560,041.5%
Non.- Current Assets
Receivables: 9 4330213 -
Property, Plant aid Equipment 10 2,870,694,733.40 3,549,922,642.722°
Other Non-Curient Assets n . 2,097,198.27 1.739.505.41
Total Non-Current:Assets: 2,672,835,233.80° .3,551,662,548.13
TOTAL ASSETS 3,091,414,857.02 3,667,222,189.64
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilitits 12, 132,376,329.55 197,383,968.76
Tinter-Agency Payalilcs 13 7.287,26547 4,794.445.70
Intra-Agency Payables 14 : - 19,200,000:00
Trust Lighifities 1§ 139,855,377.49, 137.89.4.0_50.04
Deferred Credits/Uncarried Income 16 115,593:16 15,593.16
Otkicr Payablis 17 3.645:081.58. 434,6601.25 .
‘Fotal Current Lidbilities 283,180,547.25 . "359,722,718.91
Noii-Current Liabilitics
Trust Liabilitics 13 42,268,420.47 108,011;,077.39
Other Paydbles - . 19 122,97 12297
Tatal Non-Carrent Linbilities 42;268,543.44. 108,013,200.36
TOTAL LIABMITIES 325;449,090.69 467,7331919.27
Total Assets less Tnfhl_.Li:_l_bj'ﬁ'_ti_cs 2,765:965.766.33, 3,199,488,270.37
NET ASSETS/EQUITY _
Equity 2,765,965,766.33 3,199,488,270.37"
‘Government Equity . o ] o
Accumulated SurplusADeéfici)) ‘2:765_,,9'65:7_66.33- 3,199,488,270.37

TOTAL NET ASSEFS/EQUITY P 276590576633 P_3,199488.270.37

“This statément should be sead in corijunction with the .anc'omp_nriﬁqg nolés.




Aanax €

REPUBLICOF THE PHILIPPINES )
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND. NATURAL RESOURCES
- CENTRAL OFFICE.
Visayas.Avenue; Diliman,. Quezon City
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Financial Performanee
Fiind’ Cluster 02 (FMP): Forestland Management Project
For the Year Exided December 31,2023

Nofes 2023 2022

REVENUE
Liess:- Carfent Operating Expensts:

' Maintcnance and Other Opcrating Expenses 20 T 182;231,923.92 P 147,851,425.17

Non-Caslhi Expenses 2] 47.740,625.38. 46.483,532.06

Total Cirrent Operating Expenses 229,972,549.30. "194,334,057.23
Surplus front Curitent Operatiors (229,972,549.30) (194,334;,957.23)
Financial Assisiance/Subsidy ) 283,626,034.03: 815,823,173.64
'Otlicr Noh-Operating Income ) 23 1,288:773.24 . 1,463,014.07
Surpius forthe Period. P 5494225797 P 622951230.48°

This statémeht shioutd be read in conjunction with-the accompénging notes.




AnnexD

REPUBLIC OF. THEPHILIPPINES
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESO[IRCES
CENTRAL OFFICE
Visayas:Avenue, Biliman, Quézon City
Consotidated Statemeit.of Changes.in Net Asset/Equity
Fund Cluster 02 (FMP)- Forestland Managemerit Projeet
For the Vear Ended-December 31,2023

2023 2023
Nojis
DBalance st Janaarg 1 : P 3,198487,014.81 P 2,577,895,000.32
Chinges in Accouriling Policy 24 - (3.796:808.68)
Prior Period Adjustments/Uirecorded lacome and Expensts 24 (3:617.722.07y (2,960,562.44)
Oxher_Adiﬁ_sfmcms 24 T §61897763 . 431,402.90
Restated Balances “3.199:488:270.37 2;571.5(9,093.10,
Changes m‘NerAssclleqmiy for Ca!endar Year
Adjustment,of Nel Revene recopnized directly inNet Assots/Equiiy (401,564.34). (664,957.06)_
. Closing _a[ cash-Trqa:m)'l(igenq' Deposit, Regutlar 25 _{R01,564.34) . (664,957.06)
" Suiplus{ Déficit) for the Period 54.942.25797 622,951.230.48
Total Recognized Revenue and Expenses for the Period 54,540,693.63 -622,186.273.42
Others : 26 .(488,063,197.67) :5,632,903.85
Dalauge'at Diceber , P 2776596576633 P 3199488,270.37°

This stateriient should be ru\_:_i.ir:qcop_jqncﬁon with the accompanying notes,




REPUBLIC OF TRE PIITLIFPINES.

DEPARTMENT OF l:!\\'IROI\MCNT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

CENTRAL:OFFICE
Visayas Averitc, Diliman, Quezon City
Candplidated Condernised Slmmcm of CashyFlow
Fund Cluster 02 (I‘MP)- Forestiand Manngzmml ‘Project
For the Yeor Eaded Decembior 31, 2023

Caish Flows Froim Ojperating Achivifics

CashToflows”
Reccipt 6 Notice,of Cash Aliocation
Collectibh of !ncomelt'{c\'cnus
-Colleciion of Recoivables:
Receipt of Intra-Agency Fund Transfers
OtherReeeipts

. Adjysiricnts
‘Total Cash tnflows

Cash Ourflws,

Rclmllnnnc fo'Nationa! Treasuiy
Payment of Expenses.

Purchase of Inventories,
Purchese to Snml-E\paudnBlc Michitiery, Bquipment
Fumiture, Fixtures-ind Books
Grm of Cash Advances,
Prepayments .
Payment'of Depokits
Paymemt of pricr year’s accounis’ pnyablcs {or opasating
expenses-
Reminsnee of Persorine! Benefit. Contributions dnd Mnndamr;-
Deductions -
Relcaseof Inter-Agency Fund Transférs.
Relms&offlmn-ngency fund transfers
Oxhcr Dlsbwscm ent
Reversatof Unutilized NCANTA
Adjiistments.

Toin} Casti Outflows

Net'Cash valrlcd by (Used jn) ‘Operating Activiics

Casly Fiows from Investing Activities
Casti Infows
l"m:ccds from Sale/Disposil.of Propenty; Plint and Equipnicnt
Totat Cash Irifiows
Cosh Outflows
I’urchaschonsuuclinn of Propzrty. Plant dnd Equipmitm
Total.Cash Outilows
Net Cash Provided by.(Used in) dnvesting Activities

Cash Flows from F‘mncl’nn.l\ctl\'ﬂlgs
‘Net Cish Proyidid tiy (Osed in) Financing Activities

Indrease (Decreasc) in Cash-and Cash Fouivaients
Cashimd Cash L'quwalcnls. January 01
“Casl 2nd Cash Equivalents, Decemiber 37

Annex E

2023 .2022

g 681,869,969:84 P -946,421,980.89.
11721846 .

.. 151.540.00. -374334.3 1

369,632,326.00- *703,160,909:00

61341654 162,661.27

4321,969.21 2,059:519.90

1,076,706,440.05-

T iGSyTOM0SIT_

40)1:564.34 664,957.06
58.815,827.02 111,415,388.51
.3,820:870.69 4,385,550.45

39,986.61 isan.gs
463794309 '$.978,252,69

286,483,895 228,834.61
32.215388.H 46221:51

157:802,164,12 199,265.793.40
27,801.153.87- 4477623472
. - 23,354.08
463.107;797.92 $21,496.864:54
14,560.00 3,926,660.50
3.862.447.8 1:863;352.69

545,900.51 6.099,505.72

757,357,387.98 "1,200,50,902.75
"319339,052:07 451,928,502:42

. 21.184:00
- 21,184.00
171,821,893:67 490,972,405.04.

171,821,893.67 . 490,977,405
1171:823 893:67) (400,977,405.94)
147,527,158.40, (39,027,71952)
25234;164.85- 64.36).884.37°
| d 172,761:323.25 8 28 23@64.85




Department.of Environment and Natural Resources.
~ Consolidated Statément of Comparison of Budget and Actual ‘Amounts
Fund:Cluster 02 (FMP)- Foreitland Management ! l’rogram
For, the Year Ended December 31,2023,

Artnes. £

Particulars Bnd_geted Amount ::t(‘:l:::t‘l‘:::;ul:‘ls Piffg_gcm::‘l-?ina! |
_ ‘ Original Final CBagis | DudBetand Astupl
RECEIPTS '
Tax Revéhue -
‘Service and Business Incoine :
Shares. Grants and- Donatums -
Gains 14.474:40 V4A74A0
‘Others 111894 1.118.94
‘Total Receipts - - 15,893.34 | 15,593.34,
PAYMENTS.
Personnel Services .
Maintenance and Gther-Operating :
Expenses ' 108.398.644.96 78.390.63129 | 5995413211 | 18.136.499.18
Capital Outlays . 219,141,922.74 | 77.490.357.09 | '3:271.10334 §  74.219.184.7%
‘Total Payments -3'273540!567570 155;880,888.-38 -6'3,225.234.45_ 92,655,653:93
NET RECEIPTS/PAYMENTS | _(327:540,567.70)| _(155,880,888.38)f _(63.209,641.11) (sz.smeo.so_ﬂ
Certified Correct: Verified the Actual Amounts:
% | ) -
JMELDA R. DELA.CRUZ DINA M: NILLOSAN

"0IC Chief: ‘/get Division

‘Department Chief Accountarij

fo
V4




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
~ Noies to Consolidated Financiat Statcmients N
Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Managenient Project (KMP)
For the-Year Ended December-3], 2023

1. Géneral Information/Agericy Profile

The financial statements .of the Department; of Environment and Nafiral Resources
(DENR) werc authotized. for issu¢ on February 14, 2024 as shown in the Statement of
"Management’s Responsibility for Financial -Statemerits, signéd By ‘Atty: Analiza Rebuielta —
“Teh, Undersecretary.-for Finance, Information Systems, and Climate Change:.

The DENR was created by virfue ofExccutive Order No. 192 othcrwisé known as thie
‘Reorganization Act of the Department of Environmerit, Energy & Natural Résources (DEENR)
isstied onJune 10, 1987 by then President Corazon C. Aquino. It became operational purspant:
to DENR Special Order No. 007 dated May 28;.1988.

The: Department is: the primary government agency responsible for the conservation,
mariagenient, developmerit, and proper-use of the country’s environment.and natural resources;
specifically forest and grazing lands, mineral lands; including those in _reservations: and
wateyshed areas; and lands of the publi¢c domain, as well as the licenising and regulation of all-
natural.resources as may be provided by law in erder to ensure equitable sharing.of the benefits
derived there from for the-welfare of the present and future generations of Filipinos.

To be.the dynamic force. behind people’s initiatives in the protection, preservation and
management of the environment through stralegic alliances arid parinerships, participate i
processés, relévant policies. and programs and appropriate information techniques towards
sustaitiable development. ' '

To achieve: the mandate of the Diepariment of Environment and Natural Résources (DENR)
and consistent with thie curfent policies and prospective plans as provided for under the
Medium Term Philippine Devielopment Plan (MTPDP), Philippine Forestry- Master Plan, and
-national/regional .and. provincial development plans; the:Government of Japan through Japan-
.Inteimational Cooperation Agency (JICA) agrees tq_exfen_d a loan to the Government of the
Philippiines through the Départment. of Finance (DOF), DENR: and National Economic and:
Developmeit Authority (NEDA) fo finance thie Forestland Managément Piroject (FMP),.one
of the highest pridrity projects.in the Philippines. '

Projeét Description

The Project area consists of 120,500 has. of forestland in Upper Magat and Cagayan River
basins exténding over Nueva Vizcaya and Quirino Provinces in Region 11, and Ifugao in CAR;
36,000 has. of the same in-Jalaur River Basin in Iloile Province of Region VI, Those forestiands
arg segregaied into 18, 4, and 3 sub-project areas in the Upper Mégat, Pampanga, and Jalaur
River basins, respectively.

The three (3)1iver basins were selected as priority sites of the project due to-the fact that these
include priority watersheds supporting Nationdl Irrigation Systems: Six (6).out of the eighteen




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)
For.the Year Enided December 311, 2023

(18) criticalwatershieds identified and initial components of National Integrated Protected Atea.

System (NIPAS) are within the Upper'Magat and Cagayan River. Basins (Casecnan Dupax .
Watershed Forest Reserves), Upper Panipanga. River Basin (Doiia Remedios-General Tinio,

Pantabangan-Carranglan, and Angat Watershed Forest Reserves, and Jalaur River: Basin:

(Jalaur River Watershed Reserve). ' :

The Migat River Watershed provides a variéty of services to the -people, such. as
hydroelectricity, irrigation, fishery, flood control, and recieation among othiers. Inappropriate
land use practices inthe area are-causing severc erosion and siltation of rivers,

The Pampanga River Basin is the source of hydro-electric power of Luzon Grid, irrigates about

363,246 hectares of farmland and source of industrial, commercial-and domestic water supply.
for Regjon 1II and Metro Manila. Howeéver, the watershed has insufficient forest cover in'as
miich as only 71,631 hedtares, representing 9% of the. river basin or. 24% of the forestland
-within the basin, are forésted. In addition, floods frequently occur within the-watershed.

‘The Jalaur Rivet Watershed, being-one of the major rivers:in the province of Iloilo, is.the
source of irrigafion water for 22,000 has. of river lands in the:area. Also, Jalaur River is. the
source of both -domesfic -and industrial water by the dowrstream municipalities of the
-watershed. However; degradation of the watershed has tesulted in the decrease of water yield
resalting to.insufficient water supply. Hence, there is an urgent need to rehabilitate the atea to
stabilize-the soil cover of the whble atea and improve water supply.

Project Profile

Fund Source 1 Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)

Loan No, < PH-P248 .

Project Cost 2. Japanesé. Yen 11,976,000,000 (Php 5,870,640,000)

Loan Proceeds : Japanese Yen 9,244,000,000 (Php 4,531.640,000).

GOP & Japanese Yen 2.732,000;000 (Php 1,339,000,000)

Signing Date . Match 30, 2012,

Effectivity Date : July 3,2012 _

‘Physical Duration : March 30, 2012 - July 3, 2023

Closing Date £ July 3,2023

Sector ; Natural Resources.

Sub-Sector - Forestry / Upland, ,

Target Beneficidties: : DENR, Upland and lowland communities, LGUs,
Other NGAS

Location, : Upper Magat and Capayan River Basin, Pampanga

River Basin and Jalaur River Basin
Executing Agency : DENR

A Special Account. shall be: maintained denominated in Japanese Yen with Bangko Sentral ng
.Pilipinas (BSP) for-disbursements of Loan Proceeds.
o Az




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Notes to Consolidated I'mam:lal Statements

Fund Cluster 02.- Foréstland- Management Project (FMP)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The original compleuon date of the project is on. July '3, 2022. However, this was revised to
July- 3, 2023 in line with the letter issued by-ihe Director General.of ‘the ‘Southeast Asia and
Pacific Department,- Japén Intemnational Cooperation Agency to the Départnent’ of Finance
dated June 30; 2022,

_Project Objective

1. To strengthen foréstland management through 1mplementmg commumty-based
forestland mandgement strategies iri three (3) critical river basms .and improve. forest
conservation, namely:

a): Upper Magat and Cagayan River Basin in Regions I and CAR-
by. Pampanga River Basin in Region IIL
¢) JalaurRiver-Basin in Region VI

2. To improve socio-economic conditions. of upland dwelleis through utilization of
natural resources in a susfainable manner.

3. To contribute to-disaster risk mitigation éfforts in vulnerable areas.
Companent/Scope of Work
1. Comprehensive Site Development

a) Surveyand Mappmg 'Mappmg of seleeted cfitical sub-project areas (290,000 has.),
conduct-of socio-economic baseline (3,000 households) and prehmmar.y study on
community-based enterprise.development covering 25 sub-project aréas:

b) Conimunity Orgamzmg Formation 6f appmpnate sizé’ and number of Peoples.
Organizations (POs); registration / capacity building of POS and CBEMA
acquisition..

) Site Development: Implementation .of site devélopment activities. inéluding forest
trec- / agro-forestry plantation, .establishment .and -maintenatice; silvo-pasture
development and community-based enterprise development.

d) Agro-forestry Support Facilities; Planmne designing. and construction .of foot
bridges, itrigation systéms, farm-to market road, pathway, hanging bridge.

€) Policy Initiative: Initiative for Watershed Management Council (WMC) / Protected
Areéa. Management Board (PAMB), for Dedication of Authority for issuing
Hawestmg Permits, and Cost-Sharing- Mechanism (3 watersheds). This involves
creation of a Task: Force dissemination'and consensus boilding-among stakeholders,

« bE




DEPARTMENT OF ENV!RONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to-Consolidated Finaricial Statements
Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Pioject (FMP):
_For the Year Ended Dccember 31, 2023

formulation of basic planning, rules and regulations, and legislative authiorization of
the éstablished council .and inechanism.

f) Monitoring and Evaluation: .Physical . validation :and institutional project. impact
* -assessment, and formulation-of phase in/out plan.

" g Project Management: Organization and. establisliment of Pro;ecl Coordination

Office/Management Offices -and insfitufional sttenigtheninig, ‘human resource
development, construction of SUSIMO Buildings.

2, Consultdncy Services
Expected Output:

) Awarded CBFMAs/PACBRMAs 10 1 ~ 5 POs.in sub-project areas ‘
b). Improved forést cover through. the rehabilitation of a. totdl of 65,500 bas. degraded
. foréstlands
c) Minimizéd soil eroston through tlie application:of conservatior measures to 5,800 has.
d) Completed -all units ‘of ‘agro-foresty Support facilities in all sub-prq;ect areas, thus
" facilitating:the community-based-enterprise dévelopment
e) -Strengthencd/@perationalized Watershed Manageient Council

‘The Agency’s registered office is located in Visayas Avéenue, Diliman Quezon City.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Px':éparatidli-.of Financial Statements

‘2.1, The firiancial .statemerits have beén prepared iri aceordance with and comply with the

Tnternational Public Sector Accounting; Standerds (IPSAS) issuéd by the Cornirnission.on
.Audit:per COA Circular No. 2021-004 dated July 21, 2021,

2.2. Thie financial statements have been prepared on the basis' of historical cost, uriless stated.
otherwise. The Stateinent of Cash Flows.is prepared using the direct method.

.2:3, The. financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso which is thie functional and

-reporting currency of the Agency.

Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies

3.1  Basis of dccounting
The: financial -statements. are prepared, on -an accfual "basis' in -accorddnce with the
International Public Sector Accouniing Standards ([PSAS).

o #




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

' Notes to Consotidated Financial Statements
Fund Chuster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMF)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

3.2 Consolidation

3.4

Consolidated Financial Statement

The consolidated financial statéments reflect the-assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the
reporting agency.

The financial statements prepared -are consolidation of reports from thé Forest -Management
Bureau, Regional Offices (CAR, II; I1F and VI) and the Ceritral Office.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash-and-cash equivalents comprisc Pefty Cash, Cash in Bank-Local Currency, Carrcit: Account
and Cash in'Bank-Foreign Cusrency, Savings Account;

Invéntories
Inventory is measured at cost:upon i}gifigl recognition. To-the extent that inventory was. received
through non-exchange transactions: {for no cost.or.for a nominal cost), the-cost of the"inventory

i§ its fairvalue at thedate of acquisition.

Inventories are recognized as an.expense when deployed for wtilization or.consumption, ini the
ordinary course of operations of the Project..

3.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition

An item is recognized as Property, Piant, and Equipment (PPE);if it meets the characieristics and
récognition criteria as a PPE..

The-characteristics of PPE are as follows:
» tangible items;

» aré held for usé in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposcs; and '
» are expiected to be used during more than one réporting period.
An item of . PPE is recogniced as an asset {ft

« It i§ probable that future econemic benefits or service potential associated with the item will
flow to the entity; and

» The ¢ost-or faif valut of the iteni can be measured reliably,

w B




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES.

Notes to Consohdated Financial Statemenis

Funid Cluster 02.- Forestland Management Project (FMP)
For the Year Ended Decembe_r 31,2023

3:6

Measurement at Recognition

An item recognized as-property; plant, and-equipment'is measured at cost.
The cost'of the PPE is the cash price équivalent.
Measurement After: Recognition

After recognition, all property, plant and equipmient are stated at cost-less accumulated-
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation of an asset begins: when it is available for-use such as whea it is: in the
location and condition‘necessary. for it to be capable of operating in the. manner intended
by management. " '

Deprecintion Metliod-and Estimated Useful Life

‘The depreciation is for 6ne month if the PPE is.available-for use on or before the 15th of.
the monti. However; if the PPE is available for se afer the 15th of the month,
deprecmtmn is for the succeeding month. ,

The Straight-Line:Method of depieciation is used.in depreciating thie Property, Plant and

'Equlpment with estimated useful lives ranging from five to ten years: The residual value
is equivalent:to-atleast five percent {5%) of the cost of the PPE.

Changes i Accounting Policies and Estimatés

The Agency recogmzes the effects of changes:in accounting policy retrospectively. The
effects” of" changes in_accounting policy were applied prospectively. if retrospective

application:is unpractwal

The Agency recognizes the effects of clianges in-accounting:estimates prospectively by
including in surplus or deficit. -

Theé Agency-correct material prior-period etrors tetrospectively in the first set of financial
statements authorized for issue after their discovery by:

‘e Restating thé comparative amourits. for priof period(s) presénted in which the error

occurred;-or

e Ifihe error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating:the openitig:

i H 5




DEPARTMENT'OF'ENWRQNMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to.Corisolidated Financial Statements
Fimd Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMF)
For thé Year Ended December 31, 2023

balances -of “assets; ligbilities arid het assets/équity for the earliest prior periad
presented. :

3.7 -Foréign Cuirrency Transactions

Transactions in ffdrei‘gq' cuitencies were initially recognized by applying the spot
exchange rate between the function currency-and the-foreign currency atthe transaction.

Af the-year-end reporting date,-foréign cuiteficy monetary items were translated. using
the-closing rate..

3.8 Budget Informatioi

The annusl, budget is prepared on a cash basis and is published in the government

iwebsite.

A separaie Statemerit of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts (SCBAA) was:
prepared since the budget and the financial statements were not prepared on comparable.
basis; The:SCBAA. was presented showing the original and final budget'and the actual
amounts on comparable basis to the budget. Explanatory-comments ‘were provided in
the suceeeding notes o the annoal financial statemerits.

4, Prior Period Adjustiments.
Correction of fundamental errors of prior years ate done by adjusting the Accumulated

‘Surplus/(Deficit). béginning balance account. Fundamental’ errors affecting current year’s
operation are charged to the current year"s accounts.

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

202

| Accounts 2023 As Restated
CashonHand = - | P 15,000.00 | P 30.000.00
Cash in Bank - Local Currency 172.735.223.75 25,193,065.35°
Treasury/Agency €ash Accounts |  11,099.50 | 11,099.50

| Total P 172,761;323.25 | P __25,234,164.85

5.1 Cash.on Hand pertajns to Petty Cash-of Regioi I at the amourit of P 15,000.00.




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements:

- Fund -Clastér 02.- Forestland Management Project (FMP)

" For the Yedr Endéd December 31, 2023

52 Cash in Bank - Local Currency

52.1. Cash in Bank-~ Local Cuirency, Cuirent Acconnt represerits the Working:
Fund accounf of the Project maintsined with the Land-Bank of the Philippines.
(LBP). It ‘includes mitomatic transfer of cash from Yen Special -Account
equwalent to the t6tal amousit- of funding checks to cover the -operational
requirements of the implementing units.

Cash in Bank — Local Curréncy; Current Account is broken down as follows:

2022
Offices 2023 As Restated:

‘Central Office P 138,099,500.88 | .P 20,145,937.83
| Region II : 9,954,416.32- 2,091,727.55
| Region IIT. 19,823,343;24 | 1,530,218.73
| Region VI 3.226.402.25 139,633:77
CAR 1,606,901.46 1,028,711.94
FMB 24.659.60 256,835.53
‘Total P _172,735,223.75 | P 25,193,065.35

5:3.Treasury/Agency Cash Accounts’

The balance on TreasurylAgency Cash- Accounis refers. to Cash-TreasuryIAgency
Deposit; Trust of FMB emounting 1o ¥ 11,099.50.

6. Receivables-

' : 2022

. Account 2023 _As Restated

Loans and Receivable Accounts P 2,80000 | P -
Inter-Agency Receivables 146,440.81 146,440.81
Intra-Agency-Receivables - 6.200,000.00
Other Réceivables ' 1.555,091.15 3,032,228.65
Total P 1,704,331.96 | ¥ 9_,3.78-,669.-46

6.1 Loans and Receivablé account pertain to Accounts Receivable by Region II af the

amiount of P 2,800.00

6.2

Inter-Agéricy Receivables: pertains to Due from. National Goveinnient Agencies by

'PMB. It consists fund transfers- to. the DBM-PS for purchasec: of comimeon supplics and’
plane tickets for official travel.. The remaining balance is still subject 10 reconciliation.

w il &




'DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
"Notes 10-Consolidated Financial Statenents

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)

‘For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

6.3 _Otlier Receivables (Currcnt)

. 2022
| -“_'\c'c-‘-'“'-“ , B As Restated
| Receivables-Disallowances/Charges P 1,528,121.50-| P 1,921,661.50
Due from Officers-and Employees ' 13,735.96 . 21.735.96
OiherRecei'v.a,bles,' 13,233.69 1,089.431.19
‘Total ' P 1,555,091.15 | # 3,032,228.65
6.3.1 Recewables-l)xsallowanc@lellargcs accoujit -pertdins to  unsettled

disallowances which at present are continuously deducted from the salaries -of
DENR Region I and Region VI employees through: payroll deduction.

6:3.2 Due from Officers and Employeces

. - 2022
| Offtces 202 __AsRestated
Region VI P 13.735.96 | ® 21,735.96

_6.3.3 Other Receivables pertains to the balances of the following Regions:
. o T 2022
Offices ’ 2023 As Restated.
Region 11 P *7.770.93°'| P -
Region VI 3.245.22 1,087,213.18
CAR 2.317.54 2,218,001
| Total P '13,233.69 | P 1,089,431.19

‘Other Récéivables of Region VI ificludes:receivable from other furids due to. crronegus
issuance of checks; receivable from varieus-employees for refund of accountabilities
and from suppliers for excess issuance of checks.

7. Tiventories

7.1 Invehtory Held for Consumption

N . 2022
Account 2023 As Res ta'@e d
| Office Supplies Inveritory P 307.483.65 | P 30,08547
| Other Supplies and Matenals Inventory ‘ 4'60;00 ' -
Total. P 307,9.43.65 o .30,085.47 -
7.2 Semi-Expendable Machinery and Equipment e
. ' ; 2022
| ‘Offices 2023 _ As Restated
CAR P P 14,450.00

w N5




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statetents

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Managcinent Project (FMP)
For the Year Ended Deceniber 31, 2023

des Supylies Invéntory |
) 2022
. Offices . 2023 As Restated
Region 'H P 307.483.65 ] P . 30,085.47

Ofﬁce Supplies Inventory account represent the cost of office supplies:purchased from
prior and current years but remained unissped as of the year ended. It includes bond

papef, ink, and small tangible items fike staple wite remover, punchet, stapler.arid other
similar items issued to end-users for government operations;.

o . .. w
es.a erial

2022
. AS Restafed

_ Offices 2023
Regionll p: 460,00 | P -

Other Supphes and Materials Inventory dccouint répresents the cost of other supplies and
matenals inventory which cannot be classified under specific inventory accounts, It
includes inventories.such as-air fresheners, fissues, plastic-covers, gatbage bags,. and the

like.
8: Other Current Assets

. 8.1, Advances

L ‘ ' o 2022
Account _ 2023 As Restated
Advances for Payroll P _-|P 20,825.20
- Advances to Special Disbuisifg Officer - 628,557:94 49,455.00
Total i® 628,557.94 | ¥ 70;280.20
Advances to'Special Disbursing Officer refers to Region Il balance as.of Decemiber 31,
2023 for liquidation.
8.2. ‘Prcpayments
. . N 2022
Account 2023 .AsRestited
Advances t0.Coitractors . P 42,76120830] P 80,446,586.51
Prepaid Registiation . 25,065:54- 13.501.34
Prepaid Insurance ' 175,718.51. 156,829.61
Total _ . P 4296199235 B 80,616.917.46

- N2




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESQURCES
Nolcs fo Consoltdated Financial Statements

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project: (FMP)
For the Yeat Ended December 31,2023

82.1 .Advances to- Contractors represents uinrecouped portion of mobilization fund

granted-to clients of the following offices:

. 2022
Qﬂices. 2023 _As Restated
Regi'on I P 1 ,'062,32'0.71 P 10,195,580.48
Regipn 11 i 233,494.06 2.419,763.02:
Region VI 41,465.393.53 67.831.243.01.
Total P 42,761,208:30 | ¥ -80,446,586.51
8.2.2 Prepaid Registration
N . o 2022
Offices. _ 2023 | AsRestated
‘Region I1 P 25,065.54 P 13,501.34

Prepaid Reg: stration represents registration fees paid in advances and subject to-monthly

amortization.

-8.2.3 .Prepaid,.lnsnrance

. 2022
‘Offices 2028 As Restated
‘Region Il P 126,111.49 ] P 89,602.93
CAR’ - 49,607.02 | 67:226.68.
Total | o .175,718.51 | ¢ 156,829.61
8.3. Deposifs
_ g 2022
Aecount 2023 AsRestated |
‘Guaranty Deposits . P 215‘,4'-'74,;07 P 215,474.07

‘The Guaranty Deposit represents FMB’s balarice for credit line. on plane fare for

Philippine: Airlines (PAL).
9, Receivables (Non-Current):

9.1 Other Receivables (Non-Current)

Offices

2023

2022
As:Restated

Region VI

P»

¥




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Fund Cluster 02 - Forestiand Management Project (FMP)
‘Forthe.Year Ended December 31, 2023

16 Property, Planf and Equipment

" o : . | Buildings and Othér
Particulars Land Improvements | Infrastrmcture Assets. Structures
| Cariying Amoint, | . . .
~ 1-dan-23.| P 16,229,708.23 | #  1,121,534,838.2) | P 7,866,195.45
Adjustments - 15,175,174.34 =
Restatéd Beginning ] . ] .
Balance 16,229,708.23 1,136,710,012.55. 7,866,195.45'
‘Additions/Acquisition }- 369,087,234.51 152,594,272.80 13,108;141.81
Transfers ’ - (905,760,522.42) -
Disposals - ’ T . o
Other Adjustments. - 39,244,340.58 (28,295.73)
Depreciation. - (42,317,473:.57) (596,349.75Y
Impairment. Loss.. - - -
Carrying Amount, . ] .
31-Dec-23 | ¥ 38531694274 | ® 380,470,629.94 | P 20,349,691.78
Graoss Cost 385,316,942.74 401,849,789.44 23,626,128.8)
{ Less: Acewmulated o N
Depreciation - (21,379,159.50). :(3,276:437.03):
| dllowarice for
Impairment Loss- = - -
-Carrying Amount, . e
31-Dec23 | ¥# 38531694274 | ® :380,470,629.94 | P 20,349,691.78
. : Magchinery and Transportation Furpiture; Fixturés
.Panieul?rs Equipment Equipmént and Books
Carrying Amount, 1.
) 1.Jan-23 | P 9,169,107.21 | P 8,360,948.11 | .P .231,560.18
| Adjustments (6,950.00): - -
Restated Beginning ] N ]
Balanee 9,162,157.21 . 8,360,948.11 231,560.18
 Additions/Acquisition 369,099.18. ' - -
Transfers (33,869.38) {146.705.16) . -
-Disposals ‘(138,694.47) - R -
Other Adjustmcnts - - (301,731.38) (11,819.18) |
Depreciation (2,839,655.76) (1,812.632.92) (25,847.52)
Impairmerit Loss ~ (129;665.90) ) - -
-Carrylng Amount, ) i ] i o o
) 31-Dec-23.} P 6,389,370.88 | ¥ .6,099878.65 | P . l9ﬂ3,‘89.3.48 :
Gross Cost 21,856.737.43 49,050,317.00 . 282,500.00
.Less: Accumulated ]
Depreciation. (15,298:284.70) (42,950,438.35) (88.606:52)
Allowéince for- o t
Impaiimeiit Loss (169.081.85) - -
«Carrying Antount,
3i-Dec-23 | ® 6,389,370.38 | ¥ 6:099,878:65 | ¥ 193,893.48

ok ﬁi-’f’“’




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT. AND-NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

‘Fund Cluster-02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)
For the Year Ended December, 31, 2023

. Conistruction in“ Other Property,
Particulars Progress- Plant and Equipment Total
Carrying Amount, ’
F _1-Jan23 | P :2,304,552,381.66 | P 57,250.05 | P 3,558,001,989.10
-Adjustments (23,247,570.72) - (8,079,346.38)
Réstated Begliining j .
Bala‘ixc'e _ 2,371,304,810.94 _57_,250;05 :3;549',922,642.72_
Additions/Acquisition 293,091,748:89 | 828,250,497.19
Fransfers (122,370,496.14) (1,028,311,593.10) |
DI.SP'DSBIS : (59,756,433:81) - . (59.895,128.28)
‘Other Adjfx_stmeﬁts 41 0.43'3,554.04) (37! 531 ,059.75)
| Depreciation - (18,999.96) . (47,610,959:48)
Impairment Loss . - (129,665.90)
Carljyin"g_Al'nount,. :
' Sl-Deci23 | p 2,071,83607584 | ¥ 38,250.09 | ¥ _ 2,870,694,733.40
Gross Cost 2.071,836,075.84 100;000.00 2,953,918,491:26
Less: Accumlated ’ ) . NP
Depreciation - {61,749.91) (83,054,676.01)
Allowance for )
Imptiiiment Loss - - {169,081.85)
Carfyingﬂ!nnuh't, .
3-Decd3 | p 207183607584 | ¥ 3825000 | P 2,870,604,733.40 |
Particulars Land Improvements | Infrastructure Assets ': .Bi_lill;i:.gs “and Other
. . nctures
Carrying:Amount, | i . " ’ L
, 1:Jan-22 | P . i 244,825,25845 | £ 8.287,033.58
| Adjustmerits . - 255,738,349.72 0.00 |
RcitatedBeginning i ..
Balance . - 500,563,608.17 .8,287,033.58
Addition$/Acquisition_ 16,229,708.23 442,472,983.76: ' -
Transfers T - T -
" Disposals - .- -
Othicr Adjustmerits - 218,914,253.17 -
Dcpréciation - (40,416.006.89) (420,838:13)
Impairmeni Loss . -
Carrying: Afount, . N . . L
31-Dec-22 r 16,229,708.23:| ¥ 1,121.534,83821 | P 7.866,195.45 |
" Gross Cost 16,229,708.23. 1.180,253.044.08: 10,517,987.00
Less: Acctimulated ' _ ' ) A
| Depreciation - (58.718.205.87) 2,651,791.55).
Allowance Jor
linpairivent Loss ) = - -
Carrying Amoum, -
3i-Dec-22.| P 16,229,708.23 | P 1,121,534,838.21 | P 7,866,195.45
aw T




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES.
Notesto- Consohdated Financial Statements
Fund Cluster-02 - Forestland ‘Management Project: EMP)

* ‘For the-Year-Ended-December 31,2023

Particulars N ‘Machinery and qunspoﬂqﬁon Furnitul_'e,:l?ixtures
) Egquipment. Equipment and Books
Carrying Amoynt, | L .
i I-Jan-22 | B 13,910,049.71 | P 9.8 14,972.310 | P 335,5772.81
1 Adjustments - '(3,716,235.07) . 399,605.07 (T8 F70:11)
Restated-Béginning L ' ) _
Balance . 10,193,814.64° 10,214,577.17 257,407.70
Additions/Acquisition- 2,058,100.18 s -
Transfers - s -
‘Disposals. (1,270,248.68) (44,180.27) -
. Other Adjustnients 1,353,228.13 - -
Deprecidtion (3,033;187.49) (1,809,448.79) (25,847.52)
Impairment Loss. (132,599.57) - L
‘Carrying-Amount, N .
31-Dec22 | P 9,169,107.21 | P 8:360,948:11 | ® 231,560.18; |
Grass Cost 23,023,51443° 55,224,853.00. 518,883.20 -
Less: Accinnilated L . L . .
Depreciation (13,715;407.65) (46,863,904.89) (287,323.02)
Allawance Jor o '
| Impairment Loss (138.999.57) - -
Carrying Amount, . o
- 31-Déc-22-| P 9,169,107.21 | ® 836094811 | ¥ 231,560.18
o ' Construction in Other Property, "
. Particulars. Propress | Plant and Equipment Total.
Carrying Amgunt, ' '
. 1-Jan-22 | p  2,534,995,680.41 | P 76,2500 P 2,812,244,822.07
Adjustments (256,295,892.72) - (3.952,343:11)
Restated Beginning . . S
| Balance ) _ _2,278,699,787.69 76,250.01 §. . 2.808 292.478.96
Additlons/Acquisition. 576,652,518.95 - 1,037,4133 311.12
1 Frensfers (220:905,423.30) - (220:905:423:30)
Disposals~ - - (1,314,428.95)
Other Adjustments: (239,894.501.68) _ - (19.627,020.38)
Depreciation ' < (18,999.96) (45;724,328.78)
‘ Impairment Loss - - (-j.32’599.57)-
Carrying -Am'(:mht, '
_ 31-Deed | p  2,304,552,381.66 | ¥ 57,250.05 | ¥ _3,558,001,989.10.
Gross Cost 2,394,552,381.66 100,000.00 3,680,420,371.60.
Less: Acciumulated L . .
Depreciation. A (42,749.95) | (122:279.382.93.
 Allowirice for- ; .
 ImpairmentLoss - - (138:999.57)
Carrying, Amount, .
31-Dec-22| P 2.394,552,381.66 | P 57,5005 | P 3,558,001,989:10

w o




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Fund Claster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)
. For the- Véar Ended December 31, 2023

Pro;e_cts f_or the Co_mpleted sife Development Proj.ects. of Regxon 6_ and §ite development
‘projects.on several location under PENRO Quiirino of Region 2.

Infrasiructure Assets includes Lazar-Kalinga-access road; Carolotan access road, Binalien
pathway, nursery Capacnaan tire path, Pallas:Nansiakan tire path, -and Sitio Tnipit 10 Sitic
Pamalayan access road.

The Buildings and- Other Structures account consists of 4 Nansiakan Agroforestry Value
Chain-Coffee Processing anid seven (7) Project Sub:-Site ‘Management Office in Nueva
Vizeaya, one (1) Project Sub-Site Management Office in Quirino, SUSIMO office building
constructed. in Diaman, Conversxon Plant, Nueva Ecija, fenovated office space in ENRA,

Carranglan Nueva Ecija to house:the FMP-personnel o project Staff, thiee SUSIMOs building
lJocated at-Caliniog, Janivay arid YL.ambuna, and Lagawe Sub-watershed buildings 'on Ibulao,
Alimt East, Alimt West and Upper Ibulao-watershed.

Machinery -and Equipmeni. account pertains o~ photocopying machines, multimedia
projectors, trailer water tank, electric. typewriter; dxgltal cameras, digital scanners, Iaptops,
base radios, firefighting equlpment, drone. GBS geotaggmg devices, generators and. the like.

The Transportation Eqmpmem Jncludes ‘two units of Mifsubishi Strada Pick-up, two units-of

Isuzu Diesel Light Truck, cight unifs of Isuzu toner Truck, 19 units of the Kawasiki Motorcycles,
Honda Motorcycle and AUV Toyota H:-Ace Grrandla

The baldnce on Famitare_, Fixture and Books refets to. computer tables, executive fables,.
steel filing cabinets with vault, dividers, steel shelves, sofas, chairs, partitions:and the:like.

Construction in Progress

‘Construction in Progress— Land Improverients.

Restated Increase/ Carrying Amount,;
Region/Office |  Carrying Amount, P : o,
' January 1, 2023 Ad_;ustments- ‘ December 31,2023
| Region IT P 690,865.865.58 [ P 35,986,365:91 | P: 726,852,231.49
_Region I 407,475,758.99 | (200.952,259.76) 206,52_'3;492.23 .
Region VI . 3281'943',0'95.40 _ (55,676,220:45) 273,266,874.95
CAR 538,362,288.02 18,963,843.25 557,326,131.27 |
_Total P 1965,647:007.99 | P (201,678,271.05) | ¥  '1,763,968,736.94

h &
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DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT ANB NATURAL RESOURCES

‘Notes to Consolidated. Financial Statements

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)

For'the YearEnded Deceniber 31, 2023

Construction in Progress.— Infrastiucture Assets.

' ~ Restated Inerease/ Carrylng.Ampnixt,
Reglod/Office: C;:;ﬂ:‘g?‘;;‘;’;" Adjistménts December 31, 2023
| Region If P 69,234,71449 | ¥ (69,234,714.49) | P -
| Region Il 25.022.457.87. (18,680,133.12) 6,342,324.75
| Region VI. 266,975,505.22 13,011,456.01 279,986,961.23
CAR . 44,425,125.37 (23,092,127.88) 21,332,997.49
Total 2 405,657,802.95 | # (97,995,519.48) | ¥ 307,662,283.47 |
Construction in Pfagress - Buildings.and Other Structare ]
Restated " icrease/ ‘Carrying.Amount,
Region/Office C;:ﬂ::g, e Adjusiments December 31,2023
Region V1 P _ -1P 205,05543 | P 205,055.43
Ottier Propexty, Plant and Equipment
; Restated . Carrying Amouiit;
‘| Region/Office Cq:ryi;gAmqunt, Depreciation li_é'quh& Si,;i!!Zi
_January 1,2023 BT . . _ .
Region ]I P 57,250.05 | P (18,999.96) | P 38,250.09

“The Other Property; Plant. and. Eguiipinent balance of Region H refets to-the transformer-
acquired last. 2020,

1. Other Non-Current Assets

J11.1 Prepaymeénts.

A s 2022
Aecomft. 292_3 | | As-.R'es_ta:at ed
_Advances to:Contractoi's . ) i 2,097,198.27. P 3.739;505,‘41 '

Advances. to Contractors account amounting to # 2,097,198.27 represents vinrecouped
mobilization fund.granted to:contractors of CAR.




DEPARTMENT OF ENVERONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to: -Consolidated Financial Statements

‘Fund.Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Praject (FMP)
Forthe Year Ended Decémbcr 31,2023 .

12 Finanéial Liabilities

12.1-Payables
12.1.1 Accounts Payable
. . 2022
Offices 2023 "~ As Restated.
Region II P 85,757,493.34 | P 99.813,821.78
Region III 15:453.57 |. _2,452,301.78
Region VI 38,185,517.12 75.445,615.69
CAR 3,673,949.95. 12,943,783 81
FMB 4,443,957.01 _5,188,547.82
Total P 13207637099 | P 195,844,070:38.

Accounts Payable mfers to: unpaid -goods and services which were already
delivered/rendered as.of the. cnd of the year.

12.1.2 Diue ta Officers and Employees

2022
Qﬁ‘icés ) _ 2023 | AsRestated
Region I1 | P 123,016.83 [ P 1,473,087.52
Region VI 127,994.00. 41,317.50 |
CAR " 24,807.41 25,492:86 |
FMB. 24.140.32 | -
‘Total P '299.958.56 | P 1,539,897.88 |
13. Inter-Agency Payables
Y . 2022
o Offjess . 2023 . As Restated
Due fo BIR P 7.234,271.99 | P 4,758.388.25
Due to PAG-IBIG 1,000.00 1.500.00
Due to Philhealth 50,648:48 34,057.45
Due to GOCCs 1,345.00 .
Total P 728726547 P°  4,794,445.70
Hos
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DEIPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND. NATURAL RBSGURCES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Find Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP).

For the Year-Ended December 31, 2023

13.1 Due to BIR is broken down. as follows:

" o 2022

Offices 2025 _ As Restafed
Region 1T P 338,04343 | P 12,341.95 |
Region 1T 684,902:29 284,912.14
‘Region'VI 3,280,569.28 2,447,848.77
CAR 1,707;825.49 885,924.69
FMB 1,222,931.50. 1,127,860.70
Total P 723427199 P 4,758,888.35

. The Due to BIR répresents the taxdue for remittance on. Jariuzry 2024.

13.2 Due to Pag:-IBIG refers to-the amount withheld on employees' premiim payinents.
and other payables for remittance 10 the Hofrie Develdpment Mutual Fund (HDMF)

on January 2024
. . 2022
Offices 2023 | AsRestated.
' _R-'igjo‘n.H P - P 700.00
| Region IH ' 600.00 600.00
CAR 400.00 200.00 |
Total P 1,000.00 | # 1,500.00

13.3 The balance on Due to. PhilHealth ambouriting to # 50, 648.48 refers 1o the arivotint
“deducted to FMB employeés-for refmittance on Januzry 2024.
13.4 Due to GOCCs balance pertains to FMB in the amount of ¢ 1,345.00.

14, Intra-Agency Payables

i4.1-'Ihtra-Ageriéy-'Payable's

o 2022
Accounts 2023 As Restated
Due to Operating Units- P -1 P 19,200,000.00
W 2




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
.. Notestto.Consolidated Finari¢id! Statements

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestiand Management Projcet (EMP)

-For+lie Year Ended Decenber 31,2023

15.Trust Liabilities (Current).

2022
: _Accolmts i 2023 As Reéstated
Guaranty/Security Deposits Payable P 13985167749 P  137.894.050.04
Trust Liabilities-Disallowances/Charges 3,700.00 . ..
Total ’ P 13985537749 P  137.894,050.04
15.1 GuarantylS’ecu’i'il)"r Deposits Piyable is broken down as follows:
; 2022
Offices 2023 As Restated
Reg';'on )i P -55:842,87845 | P 75.265,082.59-
| Region 111 15,744,086.83 48,340,097.08
| Region VI 14,115:990.55: |. '14,288.870.37 .
CAR 54,148,721.66 -
Total P 13985167749 ¥ 4 137,894,050.04

Guaranty/Seciirity Deposits Payable represents 10% reiéntion feg for the billing -of the

"Pepple’s Organization.

16. Deferied Credits/Unearned Income

16.1 Deferred Credits.

Other Deferred Credits réfers to the balance of FMB. amounting to £15,593.16.

17. Other Payables (Current)

oy 023 2022

Offtces. 2023 AsRestated. _
Region VI P 321132033| £ -
FMB P434,661.25 434,661.25
Total P 3,645,981.58.| ® 434,661.25 |
Other Payables of FMB réfers to loan payables to COOP.

18. Trust Liabilities (Non-Current)

18.1 Guaranty/Security Deposits. Payable
' . - e 2022

| Offices o 22 As Restated
Region VI P 4226842047 7  .32,766709.72.
CAR - . 75:244.367.67
Total P 4226842047 | P 108,011,077:39

e i s




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND-NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes:to Consolidated Financial Statements

Fund Cluster 02.- Forestland Mariagenient Projéct (FMP)
. For the Year Efided December 31, 2023

Guaranty/Security Deposits Payable represents 10%. reiention fee for the billing: of the
People’s Organization.

19. Other Payables-(Non-Current)

19.1-Other Payables

e : 2022
Offices 2023 As Restated
[Region VI_ P 12297 P 122:97
20.. Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses
. 2022
Accouint .2023 As Restated
Traveling Expénses P 4,115,352.89 | P 5,330,142.68
Training & Scholarship Expenses 7,304,783.95 16;193,656.69
Supplies and Materials-Expenses 35, 372 509.76 11,584,108.42
Utilities Expenses 2,308,373.50 2.010,099.32
Communication Expenses 369.295.97 457,716.21
Professional Services 47,388,970.25. 82,968:164.80
Getieral Services 6,230,263.38 | '20,093,_968.34-
‘Repairs.and Maintenance: 2,432.385.28 3,689,363.94
Taxes, Insurance:Premiums, and Other .
 Fees 527,721.67 632,865.42
Other Maintenance and Operating. .
Expenses. 106,182,967.27 4,891,338.85
Total Maintenance and Other ' '
Oneratmg_l_.i:__xp_nses P 182231923921 ¥ 147,851,425.17

20.1 Traveling Expenses periains to expenses Jdhcurred and per diems by staffs and
emiployees.of DENR vnder FMP during the fiéld validation of various-site plantation and
attendance to variqus trainings, workshops and meetings.

20.2 Train_ﬁng & Scholarship. Expenses

Training Expenses iricludes training fe¢s, honoraria-oflecturers, costof. hand-puts, supplies,
materials, meals, snacks, vemie-and all-other training related expenses conducted for FMP

personnel: _
L

o




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND'NATURAL RESOURCES

Notes t6 Consolidated-Finaricial Statements

Fiind Cluster 02-- Forestland Mandgement Project (FMP)

For the Year Ended Deceniber: 3 i, 2023

20.3 ‘Supplies & Materials Expense

§ : 2022
Account _ . 2023 As Restated
Office Supplies Expenses P 1,802,512.67 [P . 4,175,830.08
Accountable Forms Expenses 12,250.00 24.000.00
Medical, Dental and Laboratory ' '
Supplies Expenses - 18,596.50
Fuel, Oil and Lubricants Expenses. 2:465,585.99 4,839,182.76
Semi-Expendable Machinery and
"Equipment Expenses 462,430.00 1.267,006.13
‘Semi-Expendable Furniture, Fixttures
4nd Books Expenses. 148,650.00, 84,880.00
Other Supplies.and Materials Expenses 481,081.10 1,174.612.95.
| Total Supplies and Materials ' o
Expénses P 5.372.,509.76. | ¥ 11,584,108.42

Office. Supplics Expenses pertams to the purcllases of office supplies such as bond paper,
ink, and small tangible items. like, staple wire remover; puncher, stapler and other similar

items issucd-to EMP staff and em))loyees

_ 20:4 Utility Expenses

- o 2022
. Account 2023 As Restated
Water Expenses P 171,702.50 | # 277.176.27
Electricity Expensés, 2.136.671.00 1,732:923.05-
Total Supplics-and Materials _ ]
| Expenses # 230837350 | P 2,010,099.32.
20.5 Communication Expenses .
Account 2023 2022. .
T -As Restated
Postage and Coutier Expenses s S i <1 P 117.00
Telephone Expenses. 214.865.23 230,921,38
Internet Subscription Expenses 154,430.74 226.,677.83
Total Communication Expeénses- o ' -369'.:2'95597 _ P 457,116.21
%
%




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Notes to-Consoliddted Financia) Statements

Fuid Cluster-02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)
For.the Year Ended December 31,2023

20.6 Professional Services _
) ; 2022
i ' Account 2023 AsRestated
| Legal Services p 18,600.00.| # 4,900.00
Consultancy Services 22,559,214.62 18,420,308.81
Other Professional Scivices . 24.811,155.63 64,542,955.99
Total Professional Scrvices P 4738897025 | P 82,968,164.80

Other Professional Services accoimnt represents payment of personal services renideted by
the-employees hired.under Job Order contract.

20,7 General Services

2022
2023
Account ' As Restated
Janitorial Services B, 284,035.56 | P 325,779.05 |.
| Other Gengral Services : 5,946,227.82 19,768,189.79
_Total P 6,230,263.38 | #  20,093,968.84 |
20.8 . Repairs and Maixtenanice
. ’ . 2022
Account 2023 AsResfated
Repairs and Maintenance-Buildings
and Othier Structures. P . 156,002.40 | P 360,594.07
-| Repdirs arid Maintenance-Machinery '
and Equipmeént 132.710:00 112,060.00
Repairs and Muiriteniance- . o
Transportation Equipment 2,143,672.88 | 3.21 6',.7.09.8?7:
Total P 2,432,38528 | P 3,689,363.94
:20.9 Taxes, Insurance Premiums & Other Fees
) 3022
Actquodt . 2023 _ As Restated
Taxes, Duties and Licenses P 66.880.80 | P 110,935.87
Fidelity Bond Premiums - 22,500.00
Insurance Experises 460,840.87 | _  499.429.55
Total P 527,721.67 P 632,865.42.

o g




lePARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND: NATURAE RESOURCES
Notes to Consolidated Financial -Statements

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)

For the Yeat Ended Decenibér 31,2023

-20.10 Other Maintenance-and Operating Expenses

) . 2022
Accoun y i
" | \ccouint 2023  As Restated
__Prihti‘ng and Publication Expenses il 25,590.00 | P “7,378.00
| Representation Expenses 2,049,066:50 3,690;675.26.
| Transportation and Delivery Expenses - -96,223.00
Rent/Lease. Expenses 74,200.00 49.809.00
Subscription Expenses. . -1 12.631.28
Donations 103,832,683.24 .
| Other Mainténance and Operating o
Expenses 200,727.53 | 1,104,622.31
| Tatal P 106,i82,267.27 | ® 4,891,338:85
21. Non-Cash Expenses
'il.l' Depreciation
' L 2022
_ Account 2023 As Restat e_d_
Depreciation-Infrastriicture Assets P 42317473.57| P 41,027,017.44.
| Depreciation-Buildings and Other -
Structures’ . -596.349.75 - 420,838.13
Dcprecjation-Machinery and N o
"Equipment 2,839,655.76 3,033,187.49
"Dépreciation-Transporiation ) o
Equipment 1,812,632.92 1,809,448.79
Depreciation-Fuiniture, Fixtures:and '
.Books . L 25,847.52 25,847.52
Depreciation-Other Property, Plant and: ‘
Equipment. __18,999.96 18,999.96
Totsl P 4761095048 P  46,335,339.33
21.2 Impairmejit Loss _
; .-2022
Account | 2023 AsRestated
Tiiipairment Loss-Other Receivables P | P 15,593.16
Impairment Loss-Property, Plant and. o
Equipment . 129,665.90 132,599.57.
 Total P 129,66590 | P 148,192.73




-DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
o "Notes to:Consolidated Financial Statéments

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Projéct. (FMP)

‘For the Year Erided December 31, 2023

22. Net Financial Assistance/Subsidy

Finam;iai Assistance/Subsidy from NGAs, LGUs, GOCCs

) 2022
_ Account _ 2023 {  AsRestated
Subsidy from National Government P 613,712,446.08 | P  B32,854,753.07
Assistance from Other National '
Govemnmert Agencies -} 160,129.54
Subsidy from Other Funds - 286,196.56
Subsidy from Central Office. 383,432,326.00: 711,702,238.54.
1 Subsidy from Regional Office/Staff o
Bureau 51,194.30 203,806.93
Total P 997,195,966.38 | P 1,545,207,124.64
Less: Financial Assistance/Subsidy to NGAs, LGUs, GOCCs, NGOs/POs-
' ) 2022
Ascount 2023 A¥ Restatéd
Assistanice to Local Government Units | #  :343.096,570.72 [ P .
Assistance to Non-Government
Orgariizations/Civil Society
Orgariizations ) 39,700.00 3,990,000:00.
Subsidy to Regional Offices/Staff _ o _
Bureaus 13,079,458.00 14,241,934.00.
Subsidy to Operating Units 357,352,868.00 711,152,017.00
Siibsidy to Othet Funds 1,335.63. -
Total P 713,569,932.35.| ¥ . 729&3;?51&0

| Net Financial Assistance/Subsidy

| P 283,626,034.03 | P

815,823,173.64 |

Fuib;g'gx froin/to.

Accounts Amount
Subsidy from Central Office ' P, _383,432,326.00
Subsidy from Regional Office/Staff Bureau 51,194.30
Subsidy to Regional Offices/Staff Bureaus. (13,079.458.00)
Subsidy to Operating Units (357,352,868.00)
Total P 13,051,194.30

e Nz




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMBNT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes fo'Consolidated Financial Statements

Fund Cluster 02 Forestland Management Project (FMP)
For the Yeear Ended December31, 2023

The P 13,051,194.30. dnffcrence is composed of the:followinp;

_ Particulary i Amount
Transfer of HP-Japtop frorn PENRO Nueva Ecija to Regiona) Off' ce I}
but the réceipt of PPE wasonly recorded on Januery 5, 2023 since'the | P 51,194.30

| Properiy Transfer Repoit- (PTR) i§ dated on 2023,

Undeposited. Funding: Chcck drawn by Central Oﬁ' Ge ‘but-was only
deposited on January 2023 The- following .office recorded the subsidy
on January 2023 as per: shieir COA advised:

PENRO llsilo 7,100,000.00
PENRO Ifugao _ 5,900,000.00
Total _ ¥ 13,051,194.30

Subsidy 'tq'.Oﬂie'r Funds

The balance.on Subsidy from Other Funds amounting to P 1,335,63 reférs to FMB’s amount-

‘of tax remittance made for other ftinds:.

Subsidy from _l\lational Government

Other adjustments amounting. to P 63,941.74 refers to adjustnients refund to’ National
Treasury of Region VI.

23. Othier Non-Operating Incoime:

23.1 Miscellaneous Incomie

. . 2022
Accounts .2023 As Restate d
Mistellaneoiis Incorrie: _ P 126929884 P  1,500,096.62.

M»Hy

Particalars Amovunt

Notice of Cash-Allocation NCA) . )

GOP- P 73,762,575.00

LP( Loan Proceeds) ! 507.585.8 89.05
Notice of Transfer of Cash Allocation (NTA) ' 72,992,427.92
Tax Remittance Advice (TRA) ) 27.529,677.87
‘Non-Cash Availment-Authority (NCAA) 8.766,293.71
Total ) . . P 690,636,263.55 |
Le&s:‘ - o T
NTA Issued L . 1 . 72,992,427.92
Reversal of Unutilized NCA 3,867,447.81
"‘Other Adjustments _ _ _ 63,941.74
Total Subsidy frox National 'Gov'emm‘qnt' P 613,712,446.08




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Notesto Consolidated Financial Siatements:

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Managenien Projcit (FMP)
__Forthe Year Efided December 31 2023

23.2 Gains o
' L 2022
Accounts , 2023 _ AsRestated
Gaini of Sale of Unserviceable Propeity P 18,500.00 . P -
Other Gains " 974.40 | -
 Total I » 1947440 » -]
23.3 Losses
. . 2022
| Accounts: | .2023 As Resfated
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and ' .
Equipment i -l P (30,132.55)
Loss on Saleof Unsemceable Property , - (6.950.00)
Total P | (37,082.55)

24. Detiils of adjustments affecting the “A

ccumulated Surplus/

ficit)? account

) 2023 2022
‘Particulars , As Restated
Changes in Accounting Policy P -1 P (3,796,808:68) |
Prior Period Adjustments/Unrecorded ' '
Income and Expenses (3,617,722.07) (2,960,562.44)
Other Adjustments 4,618:977.63 '~ 431,402.90
Total P 1,001,25556 | P (6,325,968.22)

mif&




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Notes:to Consolidated Financial Statements

Fund Cluster.02.- Forestland ‘Management Project/(FMP)-
For the Year'l-:_nded December 31, 2023

Impaci of Prior Year Adjustments on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Particulars A};;‘;’;;’;;’Y Adjustments 2022 As Restated
Alssets’ )
Current Assets.
Caslrand Cash
.Equivalents P 2522389869 | ¢ 10,266.16 | P  25,234,164.85
Receivables 9,229,355.93 149.313.53 9.378,669.46
JInventories 783,372.81 (738,837.34) 44,535.47
‘Othier Current Asset 69,769,144.19 11,133,527.54 80,902,671.73
“Total Current Assets. 105,005,771.62 | 10,554,269.89 115,560,041.51 |
‘Non.- Carrent Assets: . '
Receivables 2,872.72 (2,872.72). -
Property, Plant and . o .
‘Equipmerit 3,558.001,989.10 (8,079,346.38) 3,549,922.642.72
‘Otlier Non-Current o
Asséts . 1.739,505:41 - 1,739,505.41
Tatal Non-Current o . . .
Assets. 3,559,744,367.23 (8,082,219,10).]  3,551,662,148.13
L_'I_I‘QI‘AL ASSETS '3,664,750,138.85 2,472,050.79- |  -3,667,222,189.64
| Liabilities
Current Liabilities _ .
Financial : Liabilities. 197,500,767.87 (1 116.-799'. 11) 197,383,968.76
1 Inter-Agenicy. Payables ~3,208,805.73 1,585,639.97 4,794,445.70
Intra-Agenicy Payables 19,200,000.00 - 19,200,000.00
Trust Liabilities 137,673,568.44 220,481.60 137,894,050.04
Deferred
CreditsfUnearned .
Income ) 15,593.16 - 15,593.16
| Other Payables 434.661.25 . -434,661.25
‘Fotal Current ) o ) B
Liabilities 358_,033;3'9.6.4'5 1,689;322.46 359,722,718.91 |
Non- Current
Liabilities . : — .
Tnist Liabilities 108.229.604.62 (218,527.23) 108,01 1,0'27.39
_Other Payables 122.97 | - 122.97 {
Total Non-Cuitrent . _ y
Liabiilities =~ 108,229,727.59 (218,527.23). 108,011,200.36
TOTAL i ' L
TIABILITIES 466,263,124.04 1,470,795.23 467,733,919.27
NET
ASSETS/EQUITY | ¥ '3,198,487,014.81 | 2 1,001255.56:| P 3,199,488,270.37




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT ANB. NATURAL RESOURCES
Noteésto'Consolidated Financial Statements

Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)

. For the Year Ended Decemiber 31, 2023

24.1 Prior Period Adjustments consists.of adjustments made for the overstatement and
tinderstatement in the recording of prior yedr expernses.

Region./ Office 2023 As 12{2; el
Regioh 11 - P (1,062401.09) |  (516,785.35)
[Region II (430,740.98 (129,601,24)
Region VI (189,478.41) (1,428,034.33)-
CAR (1,602,570.12) (640,147.31)
FMB (332,531.47) (245.994.21)
Total P (36177207 | P (2,960,562.44)

24.2 Other Adjustmeits represents diréct adjustments to Net Asseté[Eqﬁit'y- which are

not revenue or expense.
Region / Office 2023 oz
Region 111 P - ®  542,863.54
CAR (367,335.67) :].9,'409;43
FMB 4,986,313.30 (130,870.07)
“Total P 4,618,977.63 | P _431,402:90

25, Cash-Treasury/Agency Deposit, Regular-

Region / Office 2023 As Izt(zéted
Repion.II ' P (166,958.43) | P (277.520.48)
Region IIf . -1 (21,008.00) |
Region VI ..(110,063.92) | (135,305:22)
CAR (38,193.94) (89,775.42) |
FMB, (86,348.05) (141,347.94)
Total P (401,564.34) [P~ (664,957.06) |
26. Others

Region /Office 2033 s
Regiondl _ P_(483,549.323.36) | ¥ -
| Region VI (4,162,239.88) __1,067,565.75
CAR (162,700.80) [ (363.936.01)
EMB (188.934.63) 4:929.274.11,
Total P. (488,063,197.67) | P 5,632,903.85

wi K g




DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRGNMENT AND-NATURAL RESOURCES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Fund Cluster 02 - Forestland Management Project (FMP)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

27, Reconciliation of Net Cash Flows fiom Operating Activities to Surplus/(Deficif).

. anaa 2022
Rarticulars U AsRestated
Surplus for. the period P 5494225797 | P 622,951,23048
Non-cash movéments 264,406,794.10 | (171,022,728.06)
Depreciation 47,610,959:48 46,335,339.33
Tmpairment Loss " 129,665.90 148,192,73
‘Décrease in Invéntories (277:858,18) (614,345.26)
Increase in receivables 8,096,752:79 (7.735,739.81)
Increase.in Other Current assets 37,079;027.73 | 10,747,052:94.
Increase/(Decrease) in Paydbles 179,527,618:42 (52,686,505.68).
Other Adjustments- ' (7,759,372.:04) |  (167,216,722.31)
Net Cash Flows from Operating
Activities P 319,349,052.07 | ¥ 451,928,502.42.




Apnex H.

Status of lmplementation of Prior Years’ Audit Recommendations
As of Deecember 31,2023

Out of ihe.25 pior years’ audit.recomsiendations, 19 were iniplesiiented.and 6 were
not implemented, .of which 4 observaiions. were reiterated in this Mandgement Letter with
modificatiots; wliere appropiiate.

Ref. No.

Observations and
Recommendations

Mam‘ggcinent Action

Auditor’s
Validation

A. FINANCIAL AUDIT

T cyY2022.

ML Par.
Nos..17-
26

1. Unmodified apirion on financial
statements

A unmiodified opinion ‘was,
rendered.on the financial statemerits
despite, the accounting
grrorsfomiissions _and deficiencies
amounting 1o $825202.52 and
£3,619,039.60, respectively, which
did not exceed the-materiality level
of P15,053,843.66..

We recommendeéd and Management
agreed fo require the respective
Chief Accouutants of FMB -
CPMO, CAR and PENROs Hugao,
Quirino, Nueva Vizcaya, ‘and lloilo
10 effect the fiecessary adjustments
on the correciions.on: the-accounting
errons/_omnss:qns and deficiencies
.observed with the cotresponding
supporting documents.

EMB.-.CPMO
A letter was seit to GAS

on March 29, 2023 and -a,

reply dated May 11, 2023
from COA-GAS has been
received. In compliance
thereto,  the
requested - for the write-
off/  adjustment of
inventory accaunts to the
OIC-Supervising:

Auditor. Likewise, the
Bureau wmade a lefler
-addressed o the

.Execuuve Director-of PS+

DBM office requesting
for tlie reconciliation of
the remaining balances.

Furthermore, the Burcau
will. strictly obsérve the
ptoper turn-over of work-

‘FMB’

Implemented

Verified the letter
sent to GAS and PS-
DBM. Validated' the
adjustmenis and
temittance made.




Annex H

Ref. No.

Observations and
Recommendatiois

Management Action

Auditor’s
‘Validation

related documenis before
issuance  of  Office
Clearance. of- persopnel
and epsure. that inventory
issuances, aré supporied
with RSMI -pursvant to
GAM for NGAs.

An enfry was made under
IEV No. 2023-05-0157
dated May 30, 2023, to
adjust the' entry-‘made as.
per JEV No. 2022-03-
0123 dated March 22,

2022,

Adjusting entries
amounting to $2,962.11
were ‘made under JEV
nos: 2023-08-000263 -and
2023-08-000264.
Meanwhile, the.
remaining. balaice of
P680.93 was remitted 1o
BIR-undér JEV no. 2023~
12-000284.

| car.

PPEs with carrying
amount of P889;275.35
were presented 16 the
Audit Team.

| PENRO TFUGAO

The accounfing unit
adjusied and recorded the.
unexpired portion of the
Insurance prerivin.
Siucceeding payments for
insurance premium will

~ Implemented
The motor vehicle
arid laptop
amounting ‘to
P889,275.35  were
presenied in  April
2023.

Implesiented
Adjustments: -were
made as shown in
JEV No. 2023-03-
13]. Reclassification
was of  semi-
expendable PPE was




Arinéx H

Ref. No.

Observitions and
Recommendations .

Management.Actioii

Anditor’s
Validatiou

be properly classified fo

Prepaid ‘Insurance
account and ‘will be
expensed.at.the end of thie
year.

‘Issued semi-expendable
PPEs. were alréady
reclassified.

PENRO QUIRINO
An-adjustment for a bank:
érror  -amounting  to
7194,721.04 was
réflected in- the: "books
with JEV Nos, 2023-05-
000339 and 2023-05-
000340 dated May 31,
2023, to restore the cash
miistakenly -deposited and
10 record thie reissuance of
a -check to SEEDA.
Additionally, an
adjustmént for a book
etror amounting to P0.01
was reflected in‘the books
with JEV No. 2023-01-
‘000085 dated.January 31,
2023.

A memorandum was.
jssued on March 03,2023,
to the Property Custodian,
requesting thé submission.
of RSMI and RSP] fo

also niade as shown
by JEV Nos: 2023~
03-128 and 130.

Not Implemented. |

Adjustments  were |-
validated. However,
the Property
Custodian was: not
able to submit the
itecessary inventory
reports..Reiteraied ih
this ‘report -undeér.
Par. 16  with
ntodification,
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Ref. Na.

‘Observitions and
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Management Action

Augditor’s
Validdtion

reflect  the  issued
Inventories .and Semi-
Expendable. propérty to
end-useis. In réspoiise 10
the memorandum, JEVs
were -drawn to adjust the
Inventory accounis.
Office Siipplies
Invéntories issuéd in prior
years,. totaling,
P18,438.58, were
-adjusted with JEV Nos.
2023-03-000200 and
2023-03-20] dated'March
31, 2023. Office Supplies
Inventories issued- in tlie:
currént  year, totaling
P276:297.24; were
adjusted witli’ JEV' No.

2023-05-000313 .dated

May'10, 2023.

JEV No. 2023-02-000147
(Fund 102) was teflécted
in the books-on February
28, 2023, to rectify the
‘ovérstatement of thé
Accounis Payable
account.

NUEVA VIZCAYA
A rectificd report of

RPCPPE. was. 'submittéd

to the Audit Teani. The
unpaid  billing from
ALCEL  Construction,,
totaling P4,522,157.25,
was recorded as an
Accounts Payable i JEV
No. 2023-03-0001:83.

The four (4) ASF projects
completed as of
December 21, 2022, were'
reclassified 10 Road

Impleménted
The RPCPPE: and
PPELC for FMP as’
of December 31,
2023 are recoriciled,.
JEVs were also
validated.
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; ‘Observations and . . Auditor’s

Ref. No. Recommendations Management Action Validation
Networks under JEV No.
2023-03-00184,
ILOILO
Coliected the remaining Implemented
‘balance of -unrtecouped| Checked the RC]
.advance payment made to | and verified-iti the
the coptractor: amounting CDI'the
1o P12;,041.33 under corresponding
Check No. 869497 dated |  _ entries made:

01/08/2024. The
Management ‘settled with
the .contractor  the
remaining  unreleased
reterition money
amounting to P40,814.27
under Check No. 869497

dated’1/8/2024.

Furthermore; the- dgency
conducted are-orfientation
and. learning event on the
Basic Internal  and
Extemial services wider
adininistrative and
finance sector Jast lurie 2,
2023 under Special Order
No. 2023-198A dated
April 27,2023,
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" Obsérvations and
Recomniéndations.

Managemént Action

Auditor’s;
Validation

B. PROJECT EVALUATION

CY 2022

ML Pat.

Nos, 27-
4)

2. .Delayed Implenientation. of the
Project

In CY 2022, tlie Project showed an

| overall utilization .vate of ‘78.94

percent: and the.  overall
disbursements. rate is only 56.79
percent. Likewise, of the nine
fargeted outputs, two were not
comipleted specifically the Lénd
Tenure  Issuance  (LTI) and
CQnstructlon of  Agroforestry
Support l"acﬂmes (ASF) projects
due’ to various .reasons, thus,
attainment of the overall projec(’s
objective/puipose was delayed.

Also, of 1the 149 established

énterprises/livelihoods by the

partiier People’s Organizations
(POs), only 84 enterprises or 56
percent were qperatlonal thus, the
project's objective to strengthen
forestland. -management. through
commaunity-based
strategies 6n enterprise development
for food security and income. were
not fully attdined,

We recominéndeéd that Mahagement
direct'the Project Head to:

a) follow up with JICA on the

release of fevolving fund for the

project disbursement and the
issuance of NOL for the
procurement of an engineering firm
to. undertake the construction
supervision--of the remaining ASF
‘subprojeets.

management’

Relative 1o the Project’s

reguest for the release of
additional tevolving
funds, a letter has been

agencies on March 22,
2023, together with the
request of  project
extension upto July 2024.

_approved by JICA per its

subiitted tothe oversight

The. eéxtension  Wwas-

Implementéd

‘A capy of -the

approved exiension

was ‘obtained.
Revolving  funds
weré also being
released as verified
fo .the submitted
disbursement
vouchers.
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Observations and
Recommendations:

Managément Action

Aud:tor 3
Valldatlon

b) continuouisly ¢cordinate with the

NCIP with-regards to the conduef of

the necessary FPIC process; and

¢) monitor the impleméntation of

the: PO Enferprise Development
sustainability plan to ensure that the
established enterpiises/livelihond
projects. will be ‘sustained for food
security and. income of the POs.

letter dated August 24,
2023.

‘Continuous. imonitoring is
being-conducted to ensure
that POs businesses will
be operationalized .and
‘sustained. Provision of
techriical assistance based
on this categorwatxon was

‘incorporated  in  the
Tespective

Entérprise
SustainabilityPlans-of ilie

"POs.which serve-.as guide
for the Project on what

type of .assistance is

needed by the POs.

-concerned

Not Implemented
Reitérated in  1this
repor! under Par.
No. 36 with

-modjification.

Implenienteéd.
The monitorimg of
PO EnDev
sustainability  plan
was already:

 incorporated in the

TOR of the
project,
staff in the 1Us.

C. COMPLIANCE AUDIT

CY.2022.

ML Par
Nos. 47-
- 66

3. Failuwre 10 insure the PPEs with |

GSIS GIF

Three: Regions, two PENROs and
FMB-CPMO.  had  propesties
amounting to P17,540,628.55 with
correspondmg ifistrance . px‘emmms
paid amounting to P189,503:02 in
accordance; with RA No. 656;
however,. the FMB-CPMO and
PENRO Iloilo's physical assets
amounting fo P '1,091,430.63- were
not.insured against firé or theft with
the: General Insurance Fund (GIF)of
GSIS, thus, the agency is at-risk of
not being'~ indemnified in case of

damage or loss of propeity.
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PENROs Nueva Vizcaya and
Quirine complied 'with -the
disposa] of their unserviceable
property. pursuant 9. Section. 79 of

‘Obiservations and. e Auditor’s
Ref. No, Recommendations- Management Action. Validation
We recommended -and tlie | FMP —CPMO Not Implemented
Management of FMB-CPMO and | The managemént | Reiferated in  this:
PENRO lloilo agieed to direct the | instructed  the.  OIC, | repori  ziider -Par:
desngnated Property Officers to be | Property Unit to_strielly No. 37 with
diligent:in mdintaining a moniforing | ensire that the Propeity modification
systeni to ensuye_thai-all insurable ]nvenlory Form (PIFy
physical. assets’ of the Agency are | submitted to-the GSIS for
insured anhially With the GSIS: insurance- is reconciled
with’ Report of Physical
We adiso recommended and [:Count of Propéity, Plant |
Management of FMB-CPMO and Equipment
agieed to direct the OJC; Property |- (RPCPPE). to avoid ‘the
Unit'to ensure that ihe PIF submiitted | ioh-fover insurance of
to . the: GSIS for insuraiice is | physical assets and waste
reconciled with RPCPPE 1o avoid | of funds.
the. nons/over-insurance of physncal o
asséts and waste of FMP-CPMO’s { ILOILO JImplemented
funds. The Designated Property Validated thru
Officers insured. physre'al counter checking the, |
assets -amounting  to | schedule of insured
P1,025,133.33, as | properties-Subinitted
follows: to the Office of the
Auditor with details
"Fund 102: of premiuin
$397,133.33 | FI-NM-| paynients made.
_GS]SILO-0003370 o
$98.000.00' | MV-MTC-
GSISILO-0010492
£131,000.00] MV-MTC-
GSISILO—0010494
‘$131,000.00] MV-MTC-
-GSISILO-00]10742
-137,000. 00| MV-MTC-
GSISILO-001049]
-$131,000.00f MV-MTC-
GSIS]I.‘.Q‘-OOI.M%
CY 2022 | 4. Disposal of .unserviceable
ML Par. | property
67-78
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Obscrvations and

.| N Auditor’s
Ref. Ne.. Recommendations. Management Action | iy tion
PD No. 1445 while unserviceable
propéity of CAR, and PENRQ
Ifugao, costing P3,732,140.26,
remained not. disposed of ‘as of
December 31, 2022, thus,
exposing to further deterioration
and decreases the realizable vilue.
We: recommended and|
Management of CAR and PENRO | IFUGAO . Implcmented
Ifugao to. direct their Disposal - Disposal was done in
Committeeto dispose immediately May 2023,
the-unserviceable property.,
CAR ~ Implemented
Unserviccable property | The  unserviceable
‘were already disposed. propeity with a-total
cdriying  aniount of
P26,843.00  were
. disposed on August
8,2023.
CY 2022. | 5. Nomimposition of liquidated
ML Pav.. | dainageés
Nos: 80-
. 95 PENRO: Nuéva: Vizcaya failed to
jmpose.  liquidated.  damages
‘ampunting to-P1,387,679.70 for the
delays incurred:on the reported four
compléted infrastructure
‘piojecis/contracts, further,
mobilization fee amounting to
P695,644.99 remain unrecovered.
Weé recommeirded and Management
agreed fo:
a) enforce collection of liguidated | NUEVA VIZCAYA Impleimented
| ddindges from the contractors | The ~ management Validated.
amounting to P1,387,679.70 and- collected figuidated | - corresponding
recover ihe balance of the advance | damages ‘from‘| official receipts.
payment amounting to P695,644.99 | contractors: :
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Ref- No-

Obseryations and
Recomniendations

Managenient Action

Auditor’s
‘Validation

from the claims of the-contractor;
and

b) become strict in dealing with
defaulting contractors by forfeiting
their  performance . -securities,
blackhslmg, or -terminating the
contract 4n  line  with fhe
aforementioned. provisions of R.A.
9184 1o protect the inierest of the
government.

¢) henceforth, diréct the Project In-
Charge to prepare Statements of

| Wotk: Accomplished as of ‘the

contract expiration date for the
immediate  computation.  and
imposition of liquidated damages, if
any.

Monte. ‘Construction and
Supply paid $2,792.32
under OR No. 0378216
‘dated November 28,
2022, Mayhaligue
‘Construction and Supply
paid £3,820.85 under OR
No. 0378217 dated
November 28, 2022.
Alfalfa'Constriction paid
$6,336,48 under OR No.
0379122: dated June 27,
2023, ‘The amount of
$4;975:16 ‘was deductéd
from the claim for
retention of Tripple P
Construction under DV
No. FMP-2023-10-736
‘dated  October 19,:2023.

Implemented

'Im_plem'ented,

CY 2022

ML Par.

"Nos. 96-
111

6. Submission ‘of accpunting and
properiy reports

PENRO Nueva Vizcaya incuged
delays in the preparation and
submission of Banhk Reconciliation
Statements. (BRS) for the agency’s

two (2) depository bank accounts; |°

contrary to Section 74 of D No.
1445 and Sections 5 and 7 of
Chapter 21 of " the' Government
Accounting Manuval (GAM). for
National Government Agenciés
(NGAs), Volume T, thus, affecting
tie -timely verification of .the

reports/statenieints, and taking up.

coirections/adjustments, if any.

Further, in PENROs ‘lfugao and
Quirino,  disbursement
amoun‘lmg to P9,720,059.17 were
not submitted fo the Audit Team
within the prescribed. period

vouchers :
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Annex‘ H
. Observations and . ‘ Auditor’s
Ref. No.. Recommendations’ Management Action ‘Validation
contrary to. COA Circular 'No. 95-
006 dated May- 18, 1995, and
Section 7 of COA Ciréular No.
2009-006 dated September 15,
2009, hampering the conduct of
timely réview and audit of the
Agency’s finantijdl trafisaclions.
We recommended and Managemeént
agreed to require’ the Accountants
of:
a) PENRO Nueva Vizéaya to-enroll |'NUEVA VIZCAYA Implémented
to the. LBP- WeAccess for easier | The mahagement has | BRS for €Y 2023
access: 1o the agency's bank | already enrolled the bank | were submitied on
statéments 1o enable the: timely .accounts: of PENRO fime as a resuit of
prepatation aid -submission’ of the | Nueva Vizcaya in the | WeAccess
moiithly. Bank  Reconciliation | 'LBP WeAccesssystem. | ‘enrollfient.
Statemenis. (BRS) in compliance
with Section 74 of PD 1445 and | Bank Reconciliation
Sections 5- and 7, -Chapter 21 .of | Statements for the year
1 GAM for NGAs;.and 2023 were submitted
“ ‘within the set:deadlines
b) PENROs )fugao -and Quirino. to | IFUGAO ‘Implemented.
immediately - submit; the Subject DVs were
disburseémernt vouchers to .avoid already submitted .in
suspénsions and/or disallowances in CY 2023.
audit, -and: to ensure that only
disbursement  vouchers  with
complete supporting documents. are | QUIRINO Implemented
‘processed and. paid. Disbursement. vouchers | DV5 were subinitied
totaling  $1,433,777.71 | to the Audit Teaiii
were submitted to ‘the and verified.
Audit Team on. various
dates.
CY.2022 | 7- Non-submissioir of copies of
ML Par. | contiacts/POs viithin set timeline
Nos. 112-
125 CAR  submitted within ‘ihe

prescribed  period copies of
government contracts, - purchase

orders (POs) -aiid their suppoiting
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Observations and
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Management Action

Auditor’s
Validation

documents fotaling 35 with
corresporniding amount -of
P3,522,216:80. However, copies of
19 government contracts and PO

.and their supportihg. documents ‘of

FMB-CPMO-  amounting to
P3,816,496. 00, and PENRO lloilo’s
11 contracts wilh undetermined
amoum, were not submitied'to COA
for review within five days from
perfection theieof but were- aftached
to the Dishursement Vouchers
(DVs) for post—audlt thus,
precluded the Audit Téams from
conducting ttmely review and
evaluation ‘and hindered the
immediate  .determination- and
communication of deficiencies. that
may.need Management’s corréctive
actions.

We recomimended and  the
Management 6f FMB —CPMO and
PENRO lloilo agreed 1o require. the
concerned -officers/staff 10 strictly
adhere to thé  prescribed
deadlines/period  undeir GCOA
Circular No. 2009-01 in the
submission of contracts and
purchiase orders.

staff/employees

FMB - CPMO

All govérnment contracts
and purchase ofders have
already been forwarded to

‘the office of the FMB's

tesident audxtox a5 of the
date of this writing.

Furthermore,. the
manageinent  instructed
the Property and
Accounting Units, and the
concernéd Division/
Offices, to-strigtly comply
and observe -protocol in

All contracts-and purchase

orders.. ‘A reiletation to
this efféct in-thie form of a
Mcmorandum will also'be
issued 1o  concerncd
and
implement the
deadlines/

strictly.
prescribed

‘contracts,,

JImplemented
The submission of
goverhment
purchase
orders. -and  their
supporting
doguments were
within th¢ prescribed
time.
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period under COA
Circular No. 2009-01
dated Fcbruary 12, 2009
in submission of ‘contract
and puichase orders. This
office  will  ensure
compliance (o the said
protocol. :
ILOILO ‘Not Implemented
The: Management issued | The Audit Team did
Memorandum dated | not issue-an AOM on

Febriuary 1, 2023
addiessed 1o all CENR
Offices -and Forestland
Management, Project
directing them that ail
Contracts/Letter of

{ Agreement. (LOA) and

Puichase Orders should
be submitted on time. to
the Office. of the Auditor
to avoid rzpetition of
Audit. Observation
Memdrandum (AOM).

Special Order No. 2023-
324 was issued daled May
30,2023 to assign officers
and personnel to submit
contract.of services, letter
of  agreement  ahd
purchase ordeis 1o the
Office of ilie Auditor.

The Management.adhered
to the recommendation to
maintain  systémi  in,
monitoring: the
contracts/PO-  executed
and to keep track of the
submission  of  the

contracts/PO.to.the Office’

of'thé-Auditor,

this subject’ Jmatter
but will continue

"monitoring the

duditee’s

.compliance.
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CY 2022 |

ML Par.

Nos. 126-
135

8. Compliaiice with Tax Laws and
Regulations:

Thie FMB — CPMO, CAR, Region
I and PENROs Ifugao, Nueva
Vizcaya, ahd Quitino withhield taxes
on ‘government purchases and
contract of  seérvicés  from
suppl:erslcontractors and remitted
withoul delay amounting 1o
£29,270,857.33 -in accordance with
Revehue Regulation No. 10-2008
dated July 8, 2008, Hosvever,. In
PENRO llollo, non-leconcghauon
and lack of monitoring of the “Due
to. BIR" account amounting to
P1,480,808. 36, as ‘of December 31,
2022, deprived both the governmerit
and.the payees/supphers/aontractors
of the productive use of the funds.

We  recommended
Managenient agreed to require. the
Accountant of PENRO lloilo to:

a) prioritize and expedite the
reconciliation of the account “Die
to BIR” and make a monthly report
on ‘the. reconciliation made, Copy-

furnished to the Office of the

Auditor;

b) remit immediately thie uarernitted
balance and shoulder the penaltles
and.interest in herpersonal capacity;
and- refund ‘t6 the ‘respective
payees/suppliets/contractors~  the
amount-of -over: withholding, if any;
and

and  ‘the.

“The

ILOILO

~ Accountant
prioritized the
reconciliation of the
account "Dueto BIR" and
made thonthly report on
the reconciliation.

‘Out of P3,220,526.95, the

Aceountmg Section
.already remitted
2,903,900.85 and
refunded  P316,626.10

Details ds.follows:

JFund iQI: Out of
$776,735:80, the
Accountifig Section

Iniplemerited

Validatéd thru audit |

of Due to BIR
account..

‘Tmplemented.
‘Validaiéd remittancé
made.
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¢) hencefoith, see. fo it that|alréady ‘remitted and | Iwpleniented- .
reconciliation -of taxes witliheld and | reconciled the balance: Validated thry audit
femitted ‘are made menthly and | P 589,689.07 | JEV#10]- of Due to BIR:
taxes withheld are remitted intact |:23-01-001 | account for CY 2023
within. the prescribed period by'| P 101,899.44 | JEV#101- of ' which-no.
properly monitoring the persons-in~-| 23-02-005 repoitable issue was
charge.. P 85,031.15|JEV#101- obseived.

23-06-025 .
P 11614 |
LDDAP#9904196633. |
7/19/23 | Tax Refuind

Fund 102: Out of

$2,443,791.15, the
Accounting Section
already .remitted and

‘refinded the ‘balance

breakdown.as. follows:
P$962,982.79:| JEV#102-

'23.01-001

$),164,298:40 l
IEV#102-23-04-010

P 316,509.96 | €DJ

Marcli- 2023
P2,443,791.15

"The Accountant and the

person  in-charge made
sure ‘that réconciliation is

.made and that .all taxes

withheld. were remitied
within  the prescribed
period. '
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D. OTHER COMPLIANCE AUDIT

CY 2022,

ML Par.

Nos. 146-
154

9. Non-maintenance -of compleie
Registry of Semi Expendable
Property Issued

The Registry of Semi-Expendable
Property Issued of PENRO Ifugao

was. incomplete, not classified as (0 |

type of Semi-Expendable -Property

and does not include completer

information  about the property,
contrary. to-item 47.4 and Annex
A.4 of GOA Circular No. 2022-004.

We recominended-and Management
agreed to require the
PropertylSupply Officer of PENRO

Ifugao to riaintain ‘a complete’

Registry of  Semi-Expendable

‘Propeity Issued and periodically

update the report in accordarice:with
ltem 4.7.4 and Annex A.4 of COA
Citcular No. 2022-004,

IFUGAO
The
Officer of PENRO Ifugao
committed to maintain a
complete. Registry of
Semi-Expendable
Property lssued  and
periodically update the.
report..

Property/Supply

Not Implemented

Reéiterated in
repori
No. 131
modification

this

‘under Pgr:
with

CY 2022
ML Par.

Nos. 155-.

163

10, Non-canduci of final acceptance

| inspection of completed project

Management of Regional Office
(RO) No. 11 fajled to conduct’ the
required Final Acceptance
Inspection-afier:the one-yeat defects
Jiability period oh the completed

Nantawakan Tire Path project with.a-

revised cojitract ~ cost.  of
£17,938,313.48; thus, it could not be:
ascertained ‘whether the completed
infrastructure project/s were fiee
from any defects/deficiencies.

‘We recommended and Management

of RO I] agreed to:

8) instruct the Inspectorate Team to
.accepfance.

conduct the final

The Provincial Project
Manageniernit

Office.

Implemented
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Ref. No. Recommendations Management Action | v jiga¢i0n
inspection on the Construction of | through its Inspecforate| Manageimént
‘Maritawakan Tire Path-to ensure the | Team-conducted the fina) attached
quality of the. said project and | acceptance: inspection of | Memorandum dated.
-implement remedial/corective | Nantawakan Tire Path | Noveniber 24, 2032
measure, if necessary; and through  Memorandum for reference.
dated November 24,
2022.
b) ensure the conduct of -final | Management will be- Implemented
‘acceptance  inspection of  all | furnishing a copy of the [ Mafiagemeni  dlso
coripleted pl:oje.cts within the | report of inspection once attached the Final
préséribed period in accerdance | submitted to their office | Acceptance
with RA 9184 and the Unnumbered: | by the. concerned PPMO. | Inspection Report per
Memoranda, Management prepared a | Methorandum dated
Memorandum instructing | March 9;.2023. of the |
the concerned field | PENR Officer of
offices 1o conduct findl | Nueva Vizcaya and
acceptance: inspection of | copy. of the
all completed projects-| Certificate -of
under Forestland | Acceptance for
Management Project and | reference and
to coinply with the | guidance.
requiremerits of RA 9184 |
on the period of
inspection.
CY-2022 | /1. Excessive and -unnecessary
ML Par. |.expenditures
Nos. 164-
180 The piocurement of 43 nbtebooks
-aggregating to  $21,500.00 of
PENRO Nueva Vizcaya s
considered an unnecessary-
“expenditure of government funds.
Moreover, non-observancé of* the'
austerity measures and ‘non-
compliance to tlie DENR Regional -
Office No. J1.Guidelines on Caiering
-Services resulted in- the incurrence.
of excessive and unnecessary
expendijtures amounting to
P44,005.00
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We recommended-and Managemeut NUEVA VIZCAYA Inipleménted
agrced o stop qhe practice: of | An explanation feiter and ‘Verified tlie RIS.|
procuring items that are not Requisition Issue Shp submitted. The audit
necessary and do. not conifibute fo | (RIS)were: pravnded tothe | teamn ‘accepts the
the achievement of the goals and | audit téam. explanation leiter and
objectives of the Agency to dvoid will continue to
the incurrence - of unnccessary | Additionally, .monitor the:
expenditures which  will  be | imanagemeit -advised the | procurement
disallowed in audit. concerned personnel 1o |activities of the
_observe and comply with | agency.
puidelines  for the
judicious and prudent use
of govérnment funds to
ensure unnecessary
expenditures are
. eliminated.
We recommended that Maiiagement
exercisg prudence in the utilization
of funds for representation and
training expenses by:
a) strictly observing thie limitations |- NULVA VIZCAYA. Implemented.
set under DENR Regional Office | Purchase requests for | Corresponding
No. 11 Memorandum dated January |-meals and snacks are:now supporting
27,2022;:and Jprepared.in: compliance'to documents.were
the issued Regional verified.
Memorandum. PRs and
b) refraining fom ordering | POs arebeing scrufinized | Fmplemented
excessive quantities of .ineals, and | prior to; the. appioval (_’f ‘No similar issué was-
snacks ‘and-stopping the practice of authorized  officials to | observed during CY
sérving meals and snacks during |-ensure thatonly nece‘ss_afvy 2023,
regularmeetings or noimal activities activities ~ with  ‘the
of PENRO Nueva Vizcaya i in order appropriate; number of
to .prevent the incurrence .of | participanis.are included.
excessive and unnecessary ’
expériditures.
CY 2022 |12 Insufficies  documemary
‘ML Par. | iequivements
Nos. 181-
188 In- PENROs Nueva Vizcaya and

Quitino, disbursements on catering
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services, amounting to $944,583.27.

‘and-P541,388.71, respectively, were
‘inadequately supported with the

required dotumeits casting doubt

.on the propriety and validity of the.

transactions.

Section 53 of GAM for -NGAs,
Volume 1 also provxdes that “The
Cash/Treasury Unit ‘shall monitor
the feceipt-of the validated LDDAP-
ADA from MDS-GSB and the issue
of Official Receipt (OR) or cther
acceptable evidence of receipt of
payments by the creditors/payees.™

‘(eniphasis ours)

We recommeénded that Management
of PENROs Nueva Vizcaya and

.Quirino to;

a)y requ:ré the Accountarit to ensure
that prior to the processing of DVs,
these are substantiated with the
complete documentary
requirements’ and-that the appmval
of approving/authorizéd efficials is
obtained pursuant 10 Sections 4(5)
and 4(6) of PD 1445; and

b} advise the Cash Unit to always

déemand/monifor thé issuance of
Official Receipt (OR) or its

-equivalent.from creditors/payees. in
-dccordance with-Section 53 of GAM
for NGAs, Volume 1.

QUIRINO

The. managemeit-
submitted thé required

documents, such as DTI
reglstratlon, Mayor (S
Pernnt,AB]R Registration,,
BIR Form ‘2307
Certificate of
Wlthholdmg Tax, and
Official Recelpts, on.
October 6, 2022,

NUEVA VIZCAYA

For the -year 2023,
disbursement vouql_xers
for ihe pdyment of

catering  seivices were:

adequately ssupported
with Notices of Meelings,
Attendance Sheets, -and
Narrafive

Reports/Minutes of the

Meeting, Moreover,..

Implementcd
Corresponding
suppoiting:
documents were.
verified.

Implemented
Verified that DVs
were adequately
supported with
‘fiecessary.
documents.
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N Observatiois and T Audifor’s
Ref. No: Recommeiidations Management Action Validation
Official Receipts, BIR
Form 2307, Business
Permit; BIR Registration,
DTI Registration, and any
other pertinent documents
were submitted to the
Audit Teain.
CY 2021 AND BELOW
OTHER COMPLIANCE AUDIT
CY-2018 |l1. Unauthoiized expenditures
ML
Par.29 |Honoraria paid ta PENRO Jloile
officials and personne[ involved. in
the. implementation of the FMP
amounlmg to $277,000.00 was not
included in the. FY 2018 FMP
Reyised Work and Financial :Plan
(WFP) contrary to. DBM Budgei
Circular No..2007-002, thus, may be
considered as illegal expénditures:
We recommended that Management Not Implemented

of PENRO lloilo to instruct- the
concerned personnel to refund the
‘honoratia receivéd amountiiig to
$277,000,60. Heneceforth,
‘discontinue granting benefits. and
-allowadnces. without legal basis. and

those that violate existing laws; tules:

and regulations.

As of Oct. 2023, the
remaining balancc of
the ND for this
payment is

227,400.00. Payment.

thi payroll
deduction is -on-
gomg, ex'cep‘l for
no Ionge1 connected
with PENRO-lloilo.
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' Department of Environment.and Natural Resources
Céntral Office - Foreign Assisted Projects.

Visayas Avenue, Diliman, Quezon City

_ AGENCY ACTION PLAN and
STATUS.OF IMPLEMENTATION:
Audit Observation and Recommendation for CY 2023
Agency Action Plan
: Action | Person/ Status of -Reasons | Acfion Taken/
.Reference Observation Recommeiidation Plav Dept. From | To | Implenientation | Fov Action to be
Responsible Delay Taken.
CY 2023 | Unadjisted dcconnting
ML. Par, | errors/omissions:  and.
Nos, 16-24: | snicarrected- ficoniting
‘deficiéncics
Various. accounting | We, recommended  and
.errors/omissions with an | Management agreed to
ggregate ‘amount of | require, thic;

P463.10 'million and

- Accountants: of FMB,

various ‘accounting
deficiencies  such” as RO II. PENROSs Ifugao,
-unsupported.  recorded Quirino, Nueya Vizcaya

transactions. incomplcte

-submission ofreports and

onreconciled differences

and-Toflo to. effect the
necessory  -adjustment
oh the errors/omissions

among _accounting with supporting
reports’ ‘and'  property documents to .correct
records withan.aggrsgate the balaices of the
amount of P99:39

million, affected the fair.

FS:

presentation  of  the

Financial  .Statements Coshiers of PENROs

({FS). Quirino and Nueva
‘Vizeaya to submit to'the
Accouiting Office a
Sthedufe of Unreleased

Checks at the end of
each, yedr for

affected accounts in the
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adjustment.in the books
of accounts;’

Supply/Property-

Officers .of PENRO
Quirino  to. regulatly
siibmit 'RSMIs to ‘the
Accouriting  Office. to
énable the recording.of
Jssuarnce of inventoties;

Accountarits and
Supply/Property
Officers of PENRO
-Quiting” {6 regularly

reconcile " their
accounting and
inventory/property

records. to accurately
reflect: thie balance .of
Inventorics and PPES in
the FS:

Taventory Committee of
PENRO Qiiirino’ to

conduct physical count.

‘of inventoiics in all

-offices and -alfo 0.

conduct a  physical
c¢ount of Othcr PPEs
that were not counted;

Accountent of PENRO
Tloilo-to monitor strictly

ond supervise-regulearly |

the staff-in-charge of
the subsidiary ledgers in
determining' the causes
‘of thé .discrepancies.
disposition of hegative
-balances and

reconcilintions of the:

Y

w3
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SLs with.the GL. sec to

it that the entries are.
‘reviewed and the SLs

are reconciled. monthly.
with the GL. and

request for additional:

staff, if necessary.
CY 2023. | Unrecovered Advances
ML. Pai. | to’Contractors
Nos, 25-35.
Inadequaté  monitdring | We recommended dnd. the
and follow-up for the \damguncntagmcdtomake
| tétovery of the.ddvarice:| a “follow-up demand and
paynients amounting: to | make other nppropnnte
£11.372 millioh-made to| actions €0 the: insurdnce
‘| various contractors of | companies of the contrattors,
‘agroforestry support | with oufstanding advance
facilities, whose | paymenis in oider to fécover
coiitracts. have  been | the amounts paid-io them.
terminated, resulted in
the.non-recovery of cagh.
which could have been,
utilized:by the Agency in
its other sub-projects:
under the Forestland
Management Project,
CY 2023 | Fund
ML.Par. | Uldk.aﬂan/obhgatmn
Nos. 36-56 | and.disbursément’
The total CY 2023 | Wé recommended and’
budget” of. the FMP was, Muanagement agre¢d to-direct
not:_optimally utilized { the Project Head'to:
resuiting. 10 2 low .
uiilization of P7122 | a exercise: Jjudicious

million or 46% of* the
1ota] availible alfotments
of P155:88 mulluon “{hat
led to the reversion of the
unobligated _continuing:

budget planning fo
ratlonallzetheprovmon
of fundsfallotments for

project.  activities ¢

1S W
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aliptment amounting to
P82.32 million which

.could have been used to |-

finalice  the  other
activities- of -the Project.
Moreover. fwo targetéd

“outputs wvere §till not
.completed as  of

Decémibeir 31, 2023

namely; Land Tenure
‘Issuance ~and

Agroforestty  Support
Facililies due to- several

“reasons, thus, attaiiment

of, the overall project’s
objcctn'c/pumose wos
deliyed: ~

avoid significant
‘tevérsion of funds;

'b;  continuously-coordinate

with the NCIP ‘to fast
track and facilitate the
conduct  of  the

nccessary EPIC

process:

C. cxpcd:tethepaymerit‘of :
contractar  billings: to |-
catch-up forthedclnyqd .

works.

€Y 2023
ML. Par:
Nos. 58-65

-Non-figuidniion afCash’

Advances

In FMB, no advinces
wére made to PS-DBM
during the  year.
However, there were still
unllquldgtcd ndvances in
prior vears” nmour_ltl,ngto

“ 0015 million as of year-

end, -contrary ‘to the
provision -of COA
CircularNo..94-013.

We recommended  -ind
Management agreed  to
instruct the Chjef.
Accounting Umt fo: -expedite
the reconciliativn of tinc
balances recorded per-book
wilh the records-of- PS-DBM
to determine and confirm
unutifized funds.and request
reﬁmdi_relum ofthe same.

CY 2023
ML. Par;

| Nos. 68-83"

Over insnrance of
Physical Assels

EMB, CAR; Regions. i,
Ifl and V1. and PENROs
Qisirino, ‘Nueva Vizcdya.
Nueva: Ecijaand [loile
had propeitics amounting
to P54.65 milllon ‘with

COI‘I’GSEO“dII‘Ig insurance

We recommended  and
Management agreed to direct
the OIC: Pmperty Unit to:

a. be familiarized with-the
provisions of the
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discontinue the

tto P034 million in| b
accordarice with RA No. inchision of the issuéd -
656 otherwise known as items in insurance;.and
the "Pmperty Thsutance.
Law", however, the FMB. | c. cxcmsc dlhgcncc in
oversinsuréd its physical recordiig PPES and
assets due to (a) Seml-%‘pchdable items
‘inclusions of PPE. items in the PIF fo ensure
- gcquired-prior to ealendar’ accuracy. and’
year 2022 with a- total correctness of physicat
cost.of Pt.14 million:that assets  for’ insurantce
should be oxpensed i coverdge
accordance with COA
Circular No: 2022-004;
(b) inciusions: of semi~
expendable items
amounting to  PO.76
milticn-that were already
Jssued to end-users: ‘and
(t:) doublc entry of semif-
‘expendable items
amounting lo  P0.02
million:
CY 2023 | Non-disposal of
ML. Par: | Unserviceable Property
Nos. 84-92
Unserviceable properties | 'Wé  recommended  and
fiom CAR. PENROs Manpgementagreed to direct’
Ifugac and Iloilo wviih an | the:
-ageregate gmount  of
‘B2:57 niillion remained | &: ‘mecountable officers to

not dnsppsed of -as at

‘yearsend conltary to

Section 79 of PD 1445,
(hus “exposing- them to
Aurther’ déteriordtion -and
decreasing: their
realizible value.

mignitor-'the properties:
under their custody and
report lmmedlatcly the
unsen'lce'lble items: to;
ihe Property-
Officer/Inventory apd
Disposal Committee for
prompt: rr.pomng in the.
1IRUP:.an

-y

)
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b. Invéntory and Disposal
Cdommittee tg sce to- it
that all unserviceable

prapt‘.rtlcs ofthe/agency

disposed
lmmedxatcly to -aviid
:further  deterjoration
and  decréase  in

_realizable value.
CY 2023 | Delajed
ML. Par, | submission/incomplete.
Nos. 93-99 snpparlmg documents of
govérnment i
cnn!mc!s/POw
.In PENRC Ifugao, copy | We  recommended  and

of government contracts,

.| purchiese orders and their
‘supporting - documehs

totdling 190 with
corresponding amount of
P7.29 wiillion were not
submitted” within  the

‘prescribed period, with

delays ranging from 1 to
101 days, while in
PENRQ Nueva. Vizcaya,
34 purchase orders with
an aggregate amount ‘of
$1.49  million.  were

submitted on time but niot .

substantiated with ‘the
ccquired  documentation
contrary fo Ttem 3.2, 1 of

1 COA: Circular No: 2009-

01 ‘datcd Febriary ‘12,
2009, thus precluded the
conduct  of  timely
auditorial review.

Menngeiment ‘of PENROQS
Ifugad and Nueva.'Viztaya
agreed to requirc their

‘respective  Supply/property

officers-to fully comply with
Ttem. 321 of COA Circulir

No, 2009-01 dated Febhuary
12, '2009. by, submitiing, all |

copies of povernment
coniracts and  purcliase

 orders within the prescribed

five (3) days. period with

‘complete’ ‘supparting

documents “from
execution/issuarice thereof.
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CY 2023 { Compliance witli
ML. Par; |.National Insurance Act
Nos. 101- | af-1995 (PhilHealth)
12
Monthly- remittances to | We:  recommended  and
the ‘PhilHealth of FMB | Management  agreed to
- for-its-contract of service | instruct  thé  Chief,
personnel’s  premium -Accounting, Unft, and' the
contributions  did not { Chi¢f Humip Resources
tally wiih the amount | Unitto:
|- withheld dunng the
momh resujted to an |a regulatly perform
unremiited balance of reconciliation. to ensure
‘P0.02millior.. Moredver; that the dotal -amoimt
the pripr years’ balance remiited tatlies with the
of P0.02 million femains ampunt deducted each
-unremitted as. of year- month;.
“end. .

b, take action to address
the current ycar under
remitfance, of
'!’21,929.74;

¢ remit lmmedxale]y the
December 2022 balance
‘of 122.544.76 s soon
os the funds are
‘available; angd '

d. réconcile priof ‘years:
ontemitted/ dyistanding
balance- of P6,173.98
and remit-immediately,
if warranted.

CY-2023 | -Enforcement/Seitlerent
ML.Par. | of .Suspension
‘Nos. 115- | Disdllowgnces/Charges
122
’ In CAR. disallowances | W¢ recommendéd . and

that have. becore, final
and execuicry amountirig

Management agreed to

enforce_compliznce by the

¢

3
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1o £2.21 million wvere not
settled as of ycarend,
which may iesult’in the

cpforcement  of  civil’
-Jiability pursuant to Rulc

persnns lfable with -the
Notice of Finality and the,
COA Order of Exccution
once these are recéived.

XN of the 2009 Revised
Rules of Procedure of the
COA.
€Y 2023 | Other Complitnce Andif
ML. Pdf. | Issues
\ros 130;
140° The Registty of Seml- | We sécomiended and

Expendable  Property-
Tssued:  was:  not

maintained by PENRO
Ifugdo, while -it is not
dccuragely- “and
completely maintained
by -CAR. In’ dddmon,
Inventory Custodian shp
(ICS) contral nisbers.
were not: assigned. fot
low-valued -and high-

- valued .itemis in PENRO

Ifisgao while 1CSs issued

“werc notrciicwed.at least

every three: -years in CAR
‘confrdty to- provisions. of

‘COA Circular No. 2022-
004,

Management, of PENRO
Ifugao and CAR agreed fo
require |heuj respective
Supply/Property Officer to
maintain; accurately ‘and

«completely the Registry of
'SEMI-E.'{peﬁdnblc Propicrty

Issucd qnd ensure ~ the
renewal of ICS cvci'y' three

years and that a ‘sepataté’

control number is.assigned to
low-valued ahid high-valuéd

tems;

We also recommended and {

Management of CAR agreed

that: the Adiministrative

Division assign a staff to
tempumnly Asgise e
Supplyl?mpeﬂy Officer in
the prepariitioi, of transfer
.documents, updanng of the
Registiy and renewatl of' iCs.

(7
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TY 2023
ML. Par.

Nos. 141~

149

Ddficiencies- in  the
conduct. .of pllysical
invemtory

“No Inventary Commiites

was constitutéd by CAR
for ~th¢ -conduct, of
physicaii inventory-for the
one-timé ~cleinsing of
PPE account balances of
the Agencv ‘cotitrary to.
Item 5.2 0f COA Circular
No. 2020-006. resulting
‘i the partial conduct of
one:time: ‘cleansing
.activity.

We recommended .and

‘Management agreed that the

Regional: Executive Difestor
issue a-Special Order for the
creation  of  lrivertocy
Committee for the one:tinie
cleansing of PPE -gccount

‘balaices and mohitor the

|mplema1(ullon of the
fctivity within the timeling
set.

CY 2023

ML. Por.

Nos, 150-
155

“The Inventory Count

Form as ript useéd - 1h9
physncul count of PPES of
PENRO ‘Ifugad” ¢ontrary
to" Jtem. 6.2.3; of COA
Circufar “No. 2020-006
‘bécause” ‘the -Invéntory
Commitiee- lmmed:alely
preparcd. RPCPPE. by
verifying ilie existence of
rocorded PPEs. only

We recommended .and
Managenient- sigreed that for
thic onc-time cleanging of
PPE. the . Tnventory
Committee;use the Inventory:
Count Form in the. physical
couht. of PPEs sind include
PPEs.found at-station in ihe
ICF.

tiga
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